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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Daawat Foods Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Daawat Foods Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(‘SAs’) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section
of our report (Refer Annexure ‘A’). We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Empasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 5 to the financial statements with regards to litigation about the
recoverability of an Insurance claim (asset) amounting to INR 13,410.53 lakhs as at March 31, 2024.
The Insurance Company had repudiated the insurance claim vide its order dated February 4, 2016
against which the Company had filed a commercial suit with District Court of Raisen, Bhopal. During
the year ended March 31, 2024, the District Court of Raisen, Bhopal passed a decree in the favour of
the Company, allowing the claim of the Company for an amount of INR 16,120.27 lakhs as per the
terms and conditions of the Insurance policy, along with interest thereon @ 6% p.a. with effect from
the date of fire incident estimated to INR 12,293.59 lakhs. The Insurance Company has filed an appeal
with the Hon’ble High Court of Madhya Pradesh against the order of the district court and while the
application on admissibility of appeal and stay has been recently heard by the Hon’ble High Court,
the order has been reserved on the same and hence, the outcome is pending.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Director’s Report is expected to be
n%é%@able to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Director’s Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary
actions, as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for audit of the financial
statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give
in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to

Me extent applicable.
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(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure C”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer Note 39 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the information and explanations
provided to us by the Management in this regard, nothing has come to our notice that

M;_A_ggs caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
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v/, (e) as provided under sub clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) above, contain any material mis-
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v. The dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year is in compliance with
Section 123 of the Act.

vi. Based on our examination, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining
its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. The
audit trail feature has been operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded
in the accounting software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come
across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

3. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid and provided by the Company to its directors is within the limits prescribed under Section
197 of the Act and the rules thereunder.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

(\\J/Lm/f

Rahul Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No. 505676
UDIN: 24505676BKGPQC5023

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 17, 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s and Board of Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

(\ \) - \_J/i
Rahul Aggarwal —_—
Partner
Membership No. 505676

UDIN: 24505676BKGPQC5023

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 17, 2024
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of Daawat Foods Limited on the Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024]

i.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

ii.

(a)

(b)

iff.

(@)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of Right of Use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment
under which Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three
years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. In accordance with this program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were verified
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) as disclosed
in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) and Intangible assets. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(i)(d) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, the provisions stated in clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The inventory (except for goods in transit) has been physically verified by the management during the
year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification, the coverage and procedure of such verification is
reasonable and appropriate, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its operations.
The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate, from Banks or Financial Institutions on the basis of security of current assets and
immovable property. The quarterly revised returns and statements filed by the Company with such
banks and financial institutions on aggregate basis are, except for few immaterial differences, in
agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company. Also refer Note 55 to the financial
statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

%the Company, the Company has provided advances in the nature of loans to any other
¥
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(A) No loans or advances in the nature of loans or guarantee or security has been given to the
subsidiary. Further, the Company does not have any joint venture or associate.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us, in relation to entity other than
subsidiary, the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, except advance paid
to suppliers against procurement of material amounting to Rs. 350 lakhs during the year, which
got settled against supply of such material during a period ranging from 90 to 180 days. These
advances have been substantially adjusted against procurement of material during the year and
the corresponding balance outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023: Rs. Nil).

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, regarding advances against supply of material (advances in the nature of loans)
granted by the Company to other entities during the year, considering interdependence between
various factors which are proprietary in nature including period of advance and its impact on pricing,
if any, availability of wide variety of similar material and volumes, we are unable to comment
whether the terms and conditions of such advances are prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the supplier advances (advances in
the nature of loans) are granted interest-free and delivery terms are specified in the agreement
against each advance given.

(d) There is no amount overdue for more than ninety days in respect of advances in the nature of loan.

(e) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the advances in the nature of loan
granted have fallen due during the year. As mentioned in clause {a) above, the suppliers’ advances
were settled within a period ranging between 90 to 180 days which are generally beyond the normal
supply terms and constitute most of the population of such advances during the year.

(f) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has granted advances in
the nature of loans during the year. These are not repayable on demand/ have stipulated delivery
terms. Hence, the requirements under clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom
the director is interested, accordingly provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Further, in our opinion, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Section 186 of the Act.

V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any
deposits from the public nor any amounts which are deemed to be deposits, within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. Accordingly,
the provisions stated under clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. Also, there
are no amounts outstanding as on March 31, 2024, which are in the nature of deposits.

vi.  The provisions of sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products
of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.
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vii.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance and income tax, though
there has been slight delay in few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities during
the year.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforementioned statutory dues as at March
31, 2024 which are outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of the
records of the Company, the details of the statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which
has not been deposited as at March 31, 2024 on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of | Unpaid Amount | Period to which [ Forum where dispute
statute dues (in INR lakhs) the amount | is pending

relates
Income tax | Income tax 59.57 2008-09 Assessing Officer
Act, 1961 demand
Income tax | Income tax 682.82 2016-17 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 demand Income Tax (Appeals)
Income tax | Income tax 80.26 2017-18 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 demand Income Tax (Appeals)
Income tax | Income tax 4.86 2019-20 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 demand Income Tax (Appeals)
Income tax | Income tax 0.09 2020-21 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 demand Income Tax (Appeals)

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not
accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in Income-tax Assessments of the Company. Accordingly, the provision stated under clause 3(viii)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ix.
(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender during
the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures
performed, we report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, no money was raised
by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(ix)}{(c) of the
Q%Ot applicable to the Company.
v/ 6 2==0cN
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(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and
on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from an
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary. The Company does not
hold any investment in any joint venture or associate (as defined under the Act) during the year ended
March 31, 2024.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary.

(a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xi.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company nor on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
any such case by the management.

(b) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government.
Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

xii.  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of
the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

Xiv.

(a) In pinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has an
'}%&@it system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

T
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(b)

XV,

Xvi.

Xvi

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

i

xviii.

Xix.

We have considered internal audit reports issued by internal auditors during the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company has not
entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors during the
year and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
the provisions stated in clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the provisions stated in clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core investment Company (“CIC”) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any Core Investment Company
as part of its group. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Based on the overall review of the financial statements, the Company has not incurred cash losses in
the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Accordingly, the provisions
stated under clause 3(xvii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, the provisions
stated in Clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not appticable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of financial
ratios (as disclosed in Note 50 to the financial statements), ageing and expected date of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
cause us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project other than ongoing
projects. Accordingly, the provisions stated in clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent amount to a special fund within
a perigd of thirty days from the end of the financial year in compliance with sub-section (6) of Section
@Béé%ompanies Act, 2013. Refer Note 36 to the financial statements.

. ? anium. Western Express Highway, Geetanjali Railway Colony, Ram Nagar. Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063. INDIA. Tel: +91 2
K -ﬁnnai | Goa | Gurugram | Hyderabad | Kochi | Kolkata | Mumbai | Pune

2 6238 0519



MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in the
report.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

N\ oy
Rahul Aggarwal

Partner -
Membership No. 505676

UDIN: 24505676BKGPQC5023

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 17, 2024

Head Office: 602, Floor 6. Raheja Titanium. Western Express Highway, Geetanjali Railway Colony, Ram Nagar. Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063. INDIA. Tel: +91 22 6238 0519
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MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants -

ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of Daawat Foods Limited on the Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under Clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Daawat Foods
Limited (“the Company”} as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that-a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We be!i§v§ that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
oun audit opyrion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
4& E
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MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company'’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

(\—\J‘—— e B

Rahul Aggarwal s
Partner -
Membership No. 505676

UDIN: 24505676BKGPQC5023

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 17, 2024

Head Office: 602, Floor 6, Raheja Titanium, Western Express Highway, Geetanjali Railway Colony, Ram Nagar. Goregaon (E). Mumbai 400063, INDIA. Tel: +91 22 6238 0519
Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Goa | Gurugram | Hyderabad | Kochi | Kolkata | Mumbai | Pune www.mska. in



DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in % lakhs unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Right of use assets
Other intangibles assets
Financial assets
Investments
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Qther non-current assets
income tax assets (net)
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventaries

Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent
Other financial assets

Other current assets

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Equity component of preference share capital
QOther equity
Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Other non-current liabilities
Tatal non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues to other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other financia! liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:- 105047W

Rahut Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No.: 505676
Place : Gurugram

Date :May 17, 2024

Notes

2(i)

2 (i)

2 (ifi)
3

0~ O Ul

10
"
12
13

16 A
168

17
18
19
20

21
22
23

24
25
26
27

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

16,518.64 11,766.82
588.90 828.48
301.54 382.11

2.70 6.90
203.82 158.40

13,963.48 13,789.08

111.64 244.49

83.84 386.25
361.34 361.34
32,135.87 27,923.87
1,01,554.74 86,332.11
3,722.11 7,719.72
328.89 712.58

- 51.47

468.29 210.00
2,732.59 1,693.10
1,08,806.62 96,718.98
1,40,942.49 1,24,642.85
1,915.53 1,915.53
524.03 524.03
53,744.48 43,173.08
56,184.04 45,612.64
1,527.59 1,540.09
244.86 312.30
139.66 57.04

3.29 11.63
1,915.40 1,921.06
14,864.79 19,378.24
67.44 62.21
823.28 759.93
55,852.04 52,118.64
1,201.33 1,153.48
9,851.90 3,222.46
35.86 121.15
146.41 293.04
82,843.05 77,109.15
84,758.45 79,030.21
1,40,942.49 1,24,642.85

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Parmod Kumar
Whole-time Director
DIN: 02475571

Place : Sonepat
Date : May 13, 2024

'S

S

Sachin Gupta

ief Finance Officer
Membership No.: 99415
Place : Gurugram

Date :May 13, 2024

of Daawat Foods Limited

surinder Kumar Arora
Managing Director
DIN: 01574728

Place : Sonepat

Date : May 13, 2024

ushkarna

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A18354
Place : Gurugram

Date : May 13, 2024



DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes
Income
Revenue from operations 28
Other income 29
Total income
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 30
Purchases of stock-in-trade 31
Changes in inventories of finished goods, semi finished goods, work-in-progress and stock
in trade : 32
Employee benefits expense 33
Finance costs 34
Depreciation and amortization expense 35
Other expenses 36
Total expenses
Profit before tax
Tax expense 37

Current tax
Deferred tax expense/(credit)
Total tax expense
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit liability 41
Tax on above
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Effective portion of gain and loss on designated portion of hedging instruments in a
cash flow hedge 43
Tax on above ’
Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earning per equity share 38
For Ordinary Equity Shares (1,89,05,291 Equity Shares @ Rs. 10 each)
Basic and diluted

For Non Voting Equity Shares (2,50,050 Equity Shares @ Rs. 10 each)
Basic and diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:- 105047W

oW

(\ \/Q\“’ \_‘_/-.\_,,./"’/\

Rahul Aggarwal e D
Partner

Membership No.:-505676

Place : Gurugram

Date : May 17, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2024

1,55,060.23
206.72

Year ended
March 31, 2023

1,30,238.50
94.82

1,55,266.95

1,30,333.32

1,35,317.52
791.41

(14,479.73)
2,706.40
2,400.76
1,901.38

12,408.80

1,00,847.64
775.71

(4,744.94)
2,397.76
2,148.30
1,526.49

17,740.40

1,41,046.54

1,20,691.36

)

14,220.41 9,641.96
3,497.67 2,543.76
139.40 {14.08)
3,637.07 2,529.68
10,583.34 7,112.28
(26.31) (65.84)
6.62 16.57

10.36 (2.64)
(2.61) 0.66
(11.94) (51.25)
10,571.40 7,061.03
55.25 37.13
55.25 37.13

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Parmod Kumar

Whole-time Director

DIN: 02475571
Place : Sonepat

Date : May 13, 2024

v

o

Sachin Gupta
inance Officer

Membership No.: 99415

Place : Gurugram

Date : May 13, 2024

of Daawat Foods Limited

d
i

Surinder Kumar Arora
Managing Director
DIN: 01574728

Place : Sonepat

Date : May 13, 2024

ot

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A18354
Place : Gurugram

Date : May 13, 2024



DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Profit before tax 14,220.41 9,641.96
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,901 .38 1,526.49
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (5.62) {64.28)
Fair value {gain)/loss on investment (21.42) 3.98
{Gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (25.22) 36.81
interest expense 2,400.76 2,148.30
Interest income (47.61) {27.39)
Operating profit before working capital changes 18,422.68 13,265.87
Adjustment for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets
Trade and other receivables 4,001.36 11,583.58
Inventaries (15,222.63) (49,593.75)
Other financial assets and other assets (1,385.81) (1,060.87)
Adjustment for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade payables and other tiabilities 10,474.51 35,080.86 -
Provisions {28.97) (132.06)
Cash generated from operations 16,261.14 9,143.63
Income tax paid (net} (3,646.84) {2,298.22)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 12,614.30 6,845.41
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment including intangible assets, capital work in progress and
movement in capital advances (6,033.64) (2,648.04)
Purchase of non-current investments (24.00) 109.82
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 34.56 49.26
Investment in fixed deposits (1.37} (81.78)
Interest received 17.43 20.50
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (6,007.02) {(2,550.24)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term borrowings {20.34) {18.77}
Net repayment of short term borrowings (4,518.87) (1,833.26)
Dividend paid (200.00} (200.00)
Interest paid (2,161.76) (1,736.48)
Payment towards lease liability . (90.00) (22.50)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (6,990.97) (3,811.01)
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (383.69) 484.16
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 712.58 228.42
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 328.89 712.58
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11)
Cash on hand 0.17 0.23
Balances with banks '
- on current account 323.72 212.35
- on deposit account with maturity of less than 3 months at balance sheet date 5.00 500.00
Total cash and cash equivalents 328.89 712.58
Cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with ‘indirect method as per Ind AS 7 - “Statement of Cash Flows”
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:- 105047W

Parmod Kumar
Whole-time Director
DIN: 02475571
Place : Sonepat.

- r w\ ate : May 13, 2024

*

( -

Rahu! Aggarwal L \\ Sachin Gupta
Partner ref Finance Officer
Membership No.: 505676 Membership No.: 99415
Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram

Date : May 17, 2024 Date : May 13, 2024
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of Daawat Foods Limited

—

Surinder Kumar Arora.
Managing Director
DIN: 01574728

Place : Sonepat
Date : May 13, ZV

Pushkarna

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A18354
Place : Gurugram

Date : May 13, 2024



DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in X lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital- {Refer Note 15)

Particulars Amount
Balance at April 01, 2022 1,915.53
Changes during the year :
Balance at March 31, 2023 1,915.53
Changes during the year
Balance at March 31, 2024 1,915.53
B. Other Equity- (Refer Note 16)
Particulars Reserve and surplus

Retained Cash flow Securities

. General reserve N . Total

earnings hedging reserve premium reserve
Balance as at April 01, 2022 34,173.82 223.68 (10.96) 1,725.51 36,112.05
Profit for the year 7,112.28 - - - 7,112.28
Items of OCI for the year :-
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of taxes) (49.27) - - (49.27)
Loss on cash flow hedges (net of taxes) - - (1.98) ©(1.98)
Total comprehensive income for the year 7,063.01 (1.98) - 7,061.03
Balance as at March 31, 2023 41,236.83 223.68 (12.94) 1,725.51 43,173.08
Balance as at Aprit 01, 2023 41,236.83 223.68 {12.94) 1,725.51. 43,173.08
Profit for the year 10,583.34 - - - 10,583.34
Items of OCI for the year :-
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of taxes) (19.69) - . (19.69)
Gains on cash flow hedges (net of taxes) - 7.75 - 7.75
Tota! comprehensive income for the year 10,563.65 - 7.75 - 10,571.40
Balance as at March 31, 2024 51,800.48 223.68 (5.19) 1,725.51 53,744.48

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:- 105047W

\)'x,/\

Rahul Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No.: 505676
Ptace : Gurugram

Date : May 17, 2024

Sk

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Parmod Kumar
Whole-time Director
DIN: 02475571
Place : Sonepat

te : May 13, 2024

>

chin Gupta

Chief Finance Officer
Membership No.: 99415

Place : Gurugram

Date : May 13, 2024

of Daawat Foods Limited
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¢ Surinder Kumar Arora

Managing Director
DIN: 01574728

Place : Sonepat
Date : May 13, 2024

—

shkarna

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A18354
Place : Gurugram

Date : May 13, 2024



Daawat Foods Limited
Summary of material accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2024

1.

i) Corporate Information

Daawat Foods Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public company with its registered office in Unit No. 134, 1%
floor, Rectangle-1, Saket District Center, New Delhi-110017 India and incorporated under the provisions
of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of LT Foods Limited. Daawat Foods
Limited is primarily in the business of milling, processing and marketing of branded and non-branded
basmati rice and manufacturing of rice food products in the domestic and overseas market and integrated
business of handling, storage and transportation of food grains.

ii) Basis of preparation

a) The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except certain financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

b) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current

classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle®,

¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a.liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liabitity is current when:

e It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle®,

e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non current liabilities, as the
case may be.

*Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of asséts for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months
for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.



Daawat Foods Limited
Summary of material accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2024
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iii) Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becames
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statetments.

iv) Material Accounting Policies

a)

Inventory

Inventories are valued as follows:

Raw materials, stores and spares and packing materials

Raw materials, stores and spares and packing material are valued at lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of raw materials, stores and spares and packing material is determined on a ‘First in First
Out’ basis and includes freight costs, interest expense where such materials are stored for a substantial
period of time and other expenditure incurred in bringing such inventories to their present location and
conditions. The aforesaid items are valued at net realisable value if the finished products in which they
are to be incorporated are expected to be sold at a loss.

Stores and spares having useful life of more than twelve months are capitaliied as tangible assets under
“Property, plant and equipment” and are depreciated prospectively over their remaining useful lives in
accordance with Ind AS 16.

Work in progress

Work in progress is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes raw material cost and
a proportion of direct and indirect overheads up to estimated stage of completion and interest expense
where such materials are stored for a substantial period of time.

Finished goods

Finished goods is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of raw materials,
direct and indirect overheads which are incurred to bring the inventories to their present location and
condition and also includes interest as a carrying cost of goods where such goods are stored for a
substantial period of time, The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

b) Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase
price, taxes (against which input has not been availed), borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met
and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any
trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits attributable to such subsequent cost associated with the item will flow
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Daawat Foods Limited
Summary of material accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2024

to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is provided on the written down value arrived on the
basis of the useful life prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

However, for the following classes of assets the Company has adopted useful life which are different
from those prescribed in Schedule Il of the Act.

|

Useful life
Categories Asset Type adopted
by management

Useful Life as per
Schedule I

‘ Plant & Machinery Other than continuous plant | 40 . 15

De-recognition

An item of Property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognized.

c) Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent measurement (amortization and useful lives)

All finite-lived intangible assets are accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalized costs are
amortized over their estimated useful lives. Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each
reporting date and any change in the same is accounted for prospectively. The following useful lives are

applied:
Intangible assets ["Useful life (in years)
Software ' | 03

De-recognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. '



Daawat Foods Limited
Summary of material accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2024

d) Capital Work in Progress

Capital work in progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects and are carried
at cost. Cost comprises purchase cost, related acquisition expenses and other direct expenses.

e) Impairment of non-financial assets

f)

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Impairment
losses of continuing operations are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest calculated using the effective interest rate (EIR) that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

g) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency.

Foreign Currencies
Transactions and balances

Initial recognition ,
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Subsequent measurement .
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item.
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h) Leases

Where the Company is the lessee
Right of use assets and lease liabilities

A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’. The Company enters into leasing
arrangements for various assets. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(i) the Company obtains substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and

(ifi) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
Recognition and initial measurement

At lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
batance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement
of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to
dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance
of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

Subsequent measurement

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.
The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is
readily available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the
measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments). Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and
increased for interest. It is re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are
changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the
practical expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these are recognized as an expense in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. '

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis as per the terms of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
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recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

i) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives and certain investments at fair value
at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

« In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are,
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the towest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between tevels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period or each case.

j) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer-and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to
transfer a distinct good or service.(or a bundle of goods and services) to the customer and is the unit of
account inind AS 115. A contract’s transaction price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation
and recognized as revenue, as, or when, the performance obligation is satisfied. The Company
recognizes revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

Sale of goods:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when-it transfers control of the product to a customer i.e.
when customers are billed (in case of ex-works) or when goods are delivered at the delivery point, as
per terms of the agreement, which could be either customer premises or carrier premises who will
deliver goods to the customer. The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract
in which there are separate performance obligations, to which a portion of the transaction price needs
to be allocated. When payments received from the customers exceed revenue recognized to date on a
particular contract, any excess (a contract liability) is reported in the statement of financial position
under other liabilities.
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Customer has a right to return for defective goods. Since the quantity of goods returned has been minimal
for years, it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue recognized will not
occur,

In order to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an agent, the Company assesses whether it has
exposure to the significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods. Revenue from such
transactions where the Company is acting as an agent is recognized on net basis i.e. after deducting the
amount contractually payable to vendor out of the total consideration received and is recognized once
the facilitation of such service is done as the Company does not assume any performance obligation.

Satisfaction of performance obligations

The Company’s revenue is derived from the single performance obligation to transfer primarily rice and
other products under arrangements in which the transfer of control of the goods and the fulfillment of
the Company’s performance obligation occur at the same time. Therefore, revenue from the sale of
goods is recognized when the Company transfers control at the point in time the customer takes
undisputed delivery of the goods.

Whether the customer has obtained control over the asset depends on when the goods are made available
to the carrier or the buyer takes possession of the goods, depending on the delivery terms. Revenue is
measured at the transaction price of the consideration received or receivable, the amount the Company
expects to be entitled to.

Payment terms

The sale of goods is typically made under credit payment terms differing from customer to customer and
ranges between 0-180 days. No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a
credit term of 180 days, which is consistent with market practice.

Rental income:
Rental income for operating lease is recognized on straight line basis with reference to terms of the
agreements.

Interest income:

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
rate applicable.

For all financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR) i.e. the rate-that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those
carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value.

If the Company determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price,
the Company accounts for that instrument at that date as follows:
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at the measurement basis mentioned above if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. Level 1 input) or based on a vatuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets. The Company recognizes the difference between the
fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss.

in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned above, adjusted to defer the difference
between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. After initial recognition, the
Company recognizes that deferred difference as a gain or loss only to the extent that it arises from
a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would take into account when pricing
the asset or liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories
upon initial recognition:

i.

ifi.

Financial assets at amortized cost - a financial instrument is measured at amortized cost if both the
following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

« Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPP!) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries - Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries
are accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate
Financial statements.

Financial assets at fair value

« Investments in equity instruments other than above - All equity investments in scope of Ind AS
109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are generally
classified as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the
Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOC!) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

o Derivative assets - All derivative assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL).

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets
have expired or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. When a financial asset is derecognized,
the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to the statement of profit and loss.
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Financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement )
After initial recognition, the financial liabilities, other than derivative liabilities, are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Amortized cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The effect of EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Derivative liabilities - All derivative liabilities are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when and only when, the Company obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss. When a financial liability is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to the
statement of profit and loss. :

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

e The Company applies expected credit loss (‘ECL’) model for measurement and recognition of.
impairment loss for financial assets. ECL is the weighted average of difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equals to
lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance. The Company computes ECL based on a
provision matrix.

e Other financial assets: .
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets
has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equals to 12-month
expected credit losses, else at an amount equals to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the
expected life of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compareés the risk of a
default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases,
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low
credit risk at the balance sheet date.
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1) Hedge accounting

Initial and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risks and non-derivative financial liabilities to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets
when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Foreign currency
risk of non-derivative financial liabilities used for hedging is measured using spot rates. -

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship;.the hedged item or
transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the
effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in
the hedged item’s cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly
effective in achieving offsetting changes in cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine
that they continue to be highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they are
designated.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives and change in foreign currency
risk component of non-derivative financial liabilities are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) and
later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss. For the purpose of hedge
accounting, hedges are classified as cash flow hedges where Company hedges its exposure to variability
in cash flows that is attributable to foreign currency risk associated with recognized liabilities in the
financial statements.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging in equity at
that time remains in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction occurs,
the cumulative gain or loss is taken to the statement of profit and loss. When the forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported
in equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

m) Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined Contribution plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, employees’ state insurance and labour welfare fund
are a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable
to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as
an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans
The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined. benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method with actuariat valuations

being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan
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assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit
recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. The re-measurements of
the net defined benefit liability are recognized directly in the other comprehensive income in the period
in which they arise. Gratuity fund is administered through Canara HSBC Life Insurance in India and PNB
Met Life.

Other Employee Benefits

Compensated absences which are allowed to be carried forward over a period in excess of 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognized as a
liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date out of which
the obligations are expected to be settled with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance
sheet date. Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to Statement of profit and loss in the period in which
they occur. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method. ’

Other short-term benefits

Expense in respect of other short-term benefits is recognized on the basis of amount paid or payable
for the period during which services are rendered by the employees.

n) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of profit and loss net of any -
reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. :

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If
it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the
provision is reversed.

o) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Potential ordinary shares shall be treated as dilutive when, and only when, their conversion to ordinary
shares would decrease earnings per share or increase loss per share from continuing operations.

p) Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates
and generates taxable income,

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverabte on differences between the carrying value
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in computation
of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred
tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent.
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

q) Government grants and subsidies

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income
in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.
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r) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108- Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the Company’s management to
allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is a component
of the Company that engages in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses,
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other
components. Results of the operating segments are reviewed regularly by the whote time directors who
have been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM), to make decisions about resources
to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information
is available. '

Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

t) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The following are the critical judgments and the key estimates concerning the future that management
has made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that may have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements or that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

a. Impairment of trade receivables - The impairment for trade receivables reflects management’s
estimate of losses inherent in its credit portfolio. This allowance is based-on Company’s estimate of
the losses to be incurred, which derives from past experience with similar receivables, current and
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historical past due amounts, write-offs and collections, the careful monitoring of portfolio credit
quality and current and projected economic and market conditions. Should the present economic
and financial situation persist or even worsen, there could be a further deterioration in the financial
situation of the Company’s debtors compared to that already taken into consideration in calculating
the allowances recognized in the financial statements.

b. Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of
critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and
anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the
DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

c. Evaluation of indicators for iAmpairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result
in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

d. Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is
based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred
tax assets can be utilized.

e. Contingent liabilities - The Company is the subject of legal proceedings and tax issues covering a
range of matters, which are pending in various jurisdictions. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such
matters, it is difficult to predict the final outcome of such matters. The cases and claims against the
Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues, which are subject to many
uncertainties, including but not limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case and
claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law. In the normal course of business,
management consults with legal counsel and certain other experts on matters related to litigation
and taxes. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an adverse outcome is probable
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

f. Inventory - The valuation of finished rice involves estimations around determination of overhead
absorption rates, rice yield from paddy and quantum of purchased rice and manufactured rice
forming part of closing inventory. The production process also involves ageing the paddy/ rice to
achieve the desired quality of rice and thus calculation of holding period and determination of
weighted average borrowing cost involves management estimation. Further, management estimates
the net realisable values of inventories including by- products, taking into account the most reliable
evidence available at each reporting date.




(i)

(i)

DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts are in ¥ takhs unless otherwise stated)

Property, plant and equipment

Description Freehold land Leasehold land Building Plant and Furniture and Office Vehicle Total
machinery fixture equipment
Gross carrying value
As at April 01, 2022 1,175.08 639.04 3,730.43 18,902.98 43.13 203.28 1,099.43 25,793.37
Additions = - 1,329.43 1,378.61 1.12 18.79 56.92 2,784.87
Disposals - - - (259.59) - - (11.83) (271.42)
As at March 31, 2023 1,175.08 639.04  5,059.86 20,022.00 44.25 222.07 1,144.52 28,306.82
Additions 142.00 . 1,556.76 4,806.94 14.22 21.70 36.12 6,577.74
Disposals - - (46.09) . (38.30) (84.39)
"As at March 31, 2024 1,317.08 639.04  6,616.62 24,782.85 58.47 243.77 1,142.34 34,800.17
‘Accumulated depreciation o
As at April 01, 2022 31.84 2,001.75 12,199.91 30.34 162.14 797.14 15,223.12
Charge for the year 7.79 188.49 1,189.29 2.49 18.91 95.26 1,502.23
Disposals = - s (174.12) - - {11.23) (185.35)
As at March 31, 2023 - 39.63 2,190.24 13,215.08 32.83 181.05 881,17 16,540,00
N Charge for the year 7.96 219.39 1,493.26 3.17 18.01 74.78 1,816.57
Disposals - - - (38.68) - - (36.36) (75.04)
As at March 31, 2024 - 47.59  2,409.63 14,669.66 36,00 199.06 919.59 18,281.53
" Net c_arrying value
At March 31, 2023 1,175.08 599.41 2,869.62 6,806.92 11.42 41.02 263.35 11,766.82
At March 31, 2024 - 1,317.08 591.45  4,206.99 10,113.19 22.47 44,74 222.75 16,518.64
Contractual obligations
Refer note 39 (B} for disclosure of capital commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
Property, plant and equipment pledged as security
Refer to Note 40 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Company.
Capital work-in-progress
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Capital work-in-progress 588.90 8128.48
588.90 828.48
Movement in capital work in progress:
Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2022 1,163.08
Add: Additions during the year 2,563.37
Less: Capitalisation during the year (2,897.97)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 * 828.48
Add: Additions during the year -
Less: Capitalisation during the year (239.58)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 * ~ 588.90
* Capital work-in-progress mainly comprises of plant and machinery.
CWIP as on March 31, 2024 Amount in CWIP for a period of ) Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
years
Projects in progress 398.84 170.57 - 19.49 588.90
Projects temporarily suspended - = - - -
Total 398.84 170.57 N - 19.49 588.90
CWIP as on March 31, 2023 Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
years
Projects in progress 808.99 19.49 828.48
Projects temporarily suspended - - :
Total 808.99 19.49 - 828.48
(This space has been intentionally feft blank)
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(i)

DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in % lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Right of use assets

Following are the changes in the carrying value of Right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2024

Opening Balance
Addition
Depreciatian

Net carrying value

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
382.11 :
- 401.93
(80.61) (19.82)
301.50 382.11

The Company has lease for apartment. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset

and a lease liability. The Company classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its property, plant and equipment.

ii) Nature of the Company’s teasing activities by type of right-of-use asset recognised on balance sheet:

Right to use

Number of right-of-use assets leased

Range of remaining lease term

Average of remaining lease term

No. of lease with extention options

No. of lease with options to purchase

No. of lease with variable payments linked to an index
No. of lease with termination option

Other Intangible assets
Description
Gross carrying value
As at April 01, 2022
Additions
As at March 31, 2023
Additions
As at March 31,2024

Accumulated amortization
As at April 01, 2022
Charge for the year
As at March 31, 2023
Charge for the year
As at March 31, 2024
Net carrying value
At March 31, 2023
At March 31, 2024

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Apartment
1

45 months

45 months

Software

54,12
5.75
59.87

59.87

48.53
4.44

52.97
4.20

57.17

6.90
2.70




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in  takhs unless otherwise stated)

Investments - Non current As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Investments carried at cost

In subsidiary companies and fellow subsidiary 84.15 85.15
Less: Provisian for Diminution in the value of investment in subsidiary - (1.00)
84.15 84.15

Investments at fair value through statement of Profit and Loss

Keyman insurance policies - 119.67 74.25
119.67 74.25
Total 203.82 158.40

Aggregate amount of
- Quoted investments -
- Unquoted investments 84.15 85.15

-lmpairment in the value of investment . - (1.00)
Total 84.15 84.15

Details of investment is as follows:

Investments carried at cost
Equity instruments - Uf\quoted
i) in subsidiary companies
10,000 (March 31, 2023: 10,000} fully paid equity shares of T 10 each in LT Agri Services
Private Limited - 1.00
Less: Provision for diminution in the value of investment . - (1.00)

ii) in fellow subsidiary
169,918 (March 31, 2023: 169,918) fully paid equity shares of ¥ 10 each in Raghunath Agro

Industries Private Limited 84.15 84.15
’ 84.15 84.15
Total o 84,15 84.15

Other financial assets As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 191.59 138.75
Security deposits T 361.36 239.80
Receivable from insurance company [refer footnote] ©13,410.53 13,410.53
13,963.48 13,789.08

Footnote:

The Company has Insurance claim recoverable (classified into non-current assets) amounting to INR 13,410.53 lakhs as at March 31, 2024. The claim was attributable
to the loss of raw materials, incurred by the Company, due to a major fire which had occurred in the work premises of the Company in India in FY 2014-15. The
Company had recognized the insurance claim recoverable (asset) amounting to INR 17,810.88 lakhs in FY 2014-15, based on the management's assessment of the loss’
amount and the positive outcome in the reports of the surveyors, then appointed by the Insurance Company. Later onm, the Insurance Company repudiated the
insurance claim vide its order dated February 4, 2016, against which the Company had filed a commercial suit with District Court of Raisen, Bhopal. On the basis of
developments in the commercial suit, and basis the repart of the surveyor which were received subsequent to the reports submitted by the surveyors initially
appointed by the Insurance Company and which had formed the basis for the Company to initially recognize this claim, the Company had written off claims amounting
to INR 4,400.25 lakhs during FY 2015-16.

During the year ended March 31, 2024, on December 22, 2023, the Hon’ble District Court of Raisen, Bhopal passed a Decree in favour of the Company in the
commercial suit, as mentioned above, and allowed the claim to the extent of INR 16,120.27 lakhs, considering the terms and conditions of the Insurance policy, along
with interest thereon @ 6% p.a. with effect from the date of the fire incident which is estimated to be INR 12,293.59 Lakhs. However, the insurance company has filed
an appeal with the Hon’ble High Court of Madhya Pradesh against the order of the district court and Application on Admissibility of Appeal and Stay has been heard by
Hon’ble Court and orders have been reserved on the same, and hence the outcome is pending.

Based on the facts of the case and evaluation of the independent tegal opinion obtained from the external legal counsels on the merits of the appeal filed, and
considering the Decree obtained in favour of the Company as mentioned above, the carrying value of the Insurance claim of INR 13,410.53 lakhs is considered -
appropriate and reasonable as at March 31, 2024. Further, given the uncertainty at this stage where possible legal options are still available with the insurance
company, the utmost certainty about the recoverability of differential excess amount of INR 15,003.33 lakhs will be established once the verdict is passed by the
higher courts and therefore, it is not appropriate to recognise the differential excess amount of INR 15,003.33 lakfis in its financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2024.
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in % lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

6 Deferred tax assets (net)

On temporary difference between the book base and tax base
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of

Unrealised foreign exchange gain on forward contracts = (4.85)
Others (5.24) -
Keyman insurance policy (30.12) (18.69)
(35.36) (23.54)
Deferred tax assets arising on account of
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 71.24 82.04
Provision for Interest on advance and others - 122.17
Provision for employee benefits 62.90 52.37
Provision for doubtful debts 11.45 11.45
Unrealised foreign exchange loss on forward contracts 1.41 -
147.00 268.03
Deferred tax assets (net) 111.64 244.49

e gnised Recognised in
Particulars As at IRORAEE statement of G
April 01, 2023 comprehens ) March 31, 2024
B profit and loss
ive income
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of
Keyman insurance policy {18.69) - (11.43) (30.12)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain on forward contracts (4.85) 4.85 - -
Others - - (5.24) (5.24)
(23.54) 4.85 {16.67) {35.36)
Deferred tax assets arising on account of .
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 82.04 - (10.80} 71.24
Provision for employee benefits 52.37 6.62 3.91 62.90
Provision for doubtfut debts 11.45 - - 11.45
Provision for interest on advance and others 122.17 - (122.17) -
Unrealised foreign exchange loss on forward contracts - 1.41 . 1.41
268.03 8.03 (129.06) 147.00
Deferred tax assets (net) 244.49 12.88 (145.73) 111.64
R.ecogmsed Recognised in
Particulars FSiat in other statement of As at
April 01, 2022 comprehens ) March 31, 2023
o profit and loss
ive income
Deferred tax liabilties arising on account of
Key man insurance policy (47.33) - 28.64 (18.69)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain on forward contract (36.19) 31.34 - (4.85)
(83.52) 31.34 28.64 (23.54)
Deferred tax assets arising on account of
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 105.53 - {23.49) 82.04
Provision for employee benefits 33.51 16.57 2.29 52.37
Provision for doubtful debts 17.16 - (5.71}) 11.45
Pravision for interest on advance and others 109.82 - 12.35 122.17
266.02 16.57 (14.56) 268.03
Deferred tax assets (net) 182.50 47.91 14.08 244.49
7 Other non-current assets " r.‘A351at2024 M hA3s1at2023
arc s arc s
Prepaid expenses _ o 7.23 5.10
Capital advances (Refer note 39(B}) /4 |3 OO N
Advances considered good - Unsecured / \¢ ,-/'_'““\O 44 76.61 381.15
"§/ V) 83.84 386.25
\@ NEW DELHI }I i
8 Income-tax assets (net) A—\¥ /QJ As at As at
\C "/ March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
lnco;n‘tax asset [net of provision] ; . * s - 361.34 361.34
T 361.34 361.34
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated}

Inventories

Raw material** - (Refer Note (a} below)
Wark-in-progress™
Semi-finished goods**
Finished goods (including goods in transit of ¥ 2,584.83 (March 31, 2023: T 1,691.19)**
Stores and spares
Packing material
Bardana
Others

“The interest capitalised as at March 31, 2024 is ¥ 1,118.57 (March 31, 2023: X 822.25).

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

59,769.26 60,187.44
257.12 279.58
33,647.73 15,532.00
5,007.90 8,621.44
239.77 203.54
1,874.54 836.97
758.42 671,14
1,01,554.74 86,332.11

Note (a): Includes inventory lying with third parties ("Suppliers”) on behalf of the Company amounting to ¥ 44,956.36 (March 31, 2023 : ¥ 38,513.02) under agency
relationship against which the Company has paid advance amounting to ¥ 10,585.20 (March 31, 2023: ¥ 2,647.57) and advance paid by the holding company (LT Foods
Limited) amounting to Nil {(March 31, 2023: ¥ 8,398.71} and remaining amaunt of T 34,371.16 (March 31, 2023: % 27,466.74) is classified under trade payables as at

march 31, 2024.
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DAAWAT FDODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All 2mounts are In T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

10’ Trade receivables

Trade receivables*
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss- (Refer foctnote)

Break-up of security details

Trade receivables considered good - Secured

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured

Trade recewables which have significant increase n credit nsk
Yrade receivables - credit impaired

Total

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Total trade receivables

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

3,767.55 7,765.16

(45.44) {45.44)

3,722.11 7,718.72
As at As at

March 31, 2024

3,722.11

45.44

3,767.55

March 31, 2023

7.719.7

45.44

7,765.16

(45.44)
7,719.72

Note:- No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other persons or from the companies in which Directors

hotd directorship other than below:

Includes amounts due from related parties (Refer note 45}
LT Foods Americas Inc. (Formerly known as Kusha inc.)
LT Foods Europe B.V.
Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited
Deva Singh Shyam Singh Export Private timited

Kameda LT Foods {India) Private Limited (Formerly known as Daawat Kameda {India) Private Limited)

£copure Specialities Limited
QOswal Woollen Mills Limited
LT Foods Limited

Faotnotes:

(i} Loss allowance includes provision created during the year Nil (March 31, 2023: Nil)

83.73
39.69

20.07

1,003.82
2,240.96
892.67
123.48
39.69
0.98
27.34
1,793.41

“(ii) The Company’s exposure ta customers is diversified and no single customer ather than related parties, contributes more than 10% of the outstanding receivables except for
five customers whose batance amount to ¥ 3,238.76 and Nil as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively.

Ageing of Trade Receivables
As at idarch 31, 2024
Particulars

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk
{iif} Undisputed Trade Receivables - crédit impaired

(iv} Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good .

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk
ivi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtfut debts (Disputed + Undisputed)

As at March 31, 2023
Particulars

f1) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

(v} Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good

(v} Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Less: Allewance for bad and doubtful debts (Disputed + Undisputed)

Refer note 43: For expected credit loss

Unbilled Dues Hot Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of Receipts
Total
Less than & & months 142 years More than o
months
- 1year 3 years
3,398.09 249.63 2.55 3.94 38.90 3,691.11
3194 0.3t 276 7.0t
. - - 31.00 31.00
R s : 38.43 38.43
- - - {3.94) {0.31) (41.19) (45.44)
- 3,398.09 249.63 2.55 3.94 = 5 67.90 3,722 11
Unbilled Dues Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of Receipts
Total
Less than 6 6 months 12 years More than “
months
- 1year 3 years

6,663.43 974.18 3.86 42.95 19.34 10.96 7,719.72
- 327 7.46 3.1 45.44
(3.27) (7.46) (34.71) (45.44)
6,663.43 974.18 8.86 42.95 19.34 10.96 7,719.72

(This space has been intentionally left blank}




13

14

DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in X lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks in current accounts

Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months at balance sheet date
Cash on hand
In Indian currency

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months at balance sheet date (Refer Note (i) below)

Note

As at

March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

323.72 212.35
5.00 500.00 -
0.17 0.23
328.89 712.58
As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

51.47

51.47

(i) Nil (March 31, 2023: X 51.47} represents deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months as at year end, held by the entity and are not available

for use by the Company, as these are pledged.

(ii) Refer note 42 - Fair value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and note 43 - Financial risk management

for assessment of expected credit losses.

Other current financial assets

Derivative assets
Export incentive recoverable
Others

Other current assets

Prepaid expenses

Balances with government aulhorities
Advance to suppliers

Staff advance

(This space has been intentionally left blank}
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As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

- 5.47
329.43 84.90
138.86 119.63
468.29 210.00

As at - As at

+ March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

#
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1,492.47 472.80
967.11 260.78
271.09 958.67
1.92 0.85
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Alt amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

15 Share capital As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Authorised share capital
24,500,000 (March 31, 2023: 24,500,000} Equity shares of T 10 each (March 31, 2023: T 10 each) 2,450.00 2,450.00
1,600,000 (March 31, 2023: 1,600,000} Preference shares of T 10 each (March 31, 2023: ¥ 10 each) 160.00 160.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up equity shares

- 18,905,291 Ordinary equity shares of ¥ 10 each (March 31, 2023: 10 each) 1,890.53 1,890.53
- 250,050 Non voting equity shares of % 10 each (March 31, 2023: ¥ 10 each) 25.00 25.00
1,915.53 1,915.53

{a) There is no movement in equity share capital during the current year and previous year.

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
~Parti£ulars B ) - No. % holding No. % holding
- Ordinary equity shares of X 10 each (March 31, 2023: X 10 each)
LT Foods Limited (the Holding Company} 1,89,05,285 100% 1,89,05,286 100.00%
- Non-vating equity shares of ¥ 10 each (March 31, 2023: 310 each)
LT Foods Limited (the Holding Company} 2,50,050 100% 2,50,049 100%

|
As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and ather declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and
beneficial ownership of shares.

{c} Shareholding of the promoters

No of Shares as at : % Change durin: No of Shares as at . % Change durin;

Name of shareholder March 31, 2024 % of holding thegyear s March 31, 2023 % of holding thegyear 2
Ordinary Equity Shares
LT Foods Limited 1,89,05,285 100.00% 0.00% 1,89,05,286 100.00% 0.00%
Ranju Arora 1 0.00% 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
Vandana Arora 1 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Ashwani Arora 1 0.00% 0.00% z 0.00% 0.00%
Surinder Arora 1 0.00% 0.00% 1 0.00% 0.00%
Yijay Kumar Arora 1 0.00% 0.00% 1 0.00% 0.00%
Ashok Kumar Arora 1 0.00% 0.00% 1 0.00% 0.00%

_ 1,89,05,291 100.00% 0.00% 1,89,05,291 100.00% ) 0.00%
Non-voting Equity Shares - -
LT Foods Limited 2,50,050 100.00% 0.00% 2,50,049 100.00% 0.00%
Munish Kumar Arora . - 0.00% 0.00% 1 o 0.00% 0.00%
Total R 2,50,050 100.00% 0.00% 2,50.05(_3__ - 100.00% - 0.00%
(d) Shareholding structure )
- As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

“Particulars B No. Amount No. Amount
“shares held by the holding company
Ordinary Equity shares of % 10 each
LT Foods Limited {the Holding corpany} 1,89,05,285 1,890.53 1,89,05,286 1,890.53
Non Vating Equity shares of X 10 cach
LT Foods Limited (the Holding company) 2,50,050 25.01 2,50,049 25.00

(e} The Company has not issued any equity shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus issues and brought back during the last five years.

(f) Terms and rights attached to voting and non-voting equity shares

The Company has two class of equity shares, voting and non-voting, having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of voting equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Non-vating equity holder is not
entitled to vote. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

16 Other equity As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A) Equity component of Non cumulative redeemable preference shares
Opening balance 524.03 524.03
Add: Equity component of preference share capital - - -
Closing balance* ’ 524.03 524.03

* This note covers the equity component of the issued Non cumulative redeemable preference shares. The liability companent is reflected in note 17. -
Also, refer note 17 (C)

B) Retained Earnings and Other Reserves As at . As at
March-31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) Retained earnings
Opening balance 41,236.83 34,173.82
Add: Profit for the year .10,583.34 7,112.28
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefits obligation (net of taxes) (19.69) (49.27)
Closing balance 51,800.48 41,236.83
(ii) General reserve
Opening balance 223.68 223.68
Change during the year - -
Closing balance 223.68 223.68
(iii) Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 1,725.51 1,725.51
Change during the year - -
Closing balance 1,725.51 1,725.51
(iv) Cash flow hedging reserve
Opening batance (12.94) (10.96)
Change during the year 7.75 (1.98)
Closing balance (5.19) (12.94)
Total other equity (B} 53,744.48 43,173.08

Nature and purpose of other reserves

General reserve:

The Company had transferred a portion of the net profit before declaring dividend to general reserve pursuant to the earlier provision of the
Companies Act 1956. Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act 2013.

Securities premium reserve:

Securities premium reserve represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is to be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Cash flow hedging reserve

The cash flow hedging reserve is used to recognise the effective portion of gains or losses on derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges.

(This space has been intentionally left blank) Spm———
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in X lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Long - term borrowings As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured loans
From banks
Vehicle loans 7.76 31.46

Unsecured loans

Liability component of compound financial instrument:-

- 10% Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares (refer note C below) 1,519.83 1,508.63
1,527.59 1,540.09

The details of financial and non financial assets pledged as security for current borrowings disclosed in Note 40.

Details of long term borrowings are as follows!:

Name of the bank and financial institution Repayments Total amount of As at As at
installment March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

. Details of security for each type of borrowing :
. Vehicle Loans from ICIC} Bank Limited are secured against hypothecation of respective motor vehicle financed.

a) Vehicle loans
(refer note A part (i) for interest rate and note B part (i) for security)

ICICI BANK 42 equal monthly 1.97 29.90 50.23
instalments

29.90 50.23

Current maturities of long- term borrowings (Refer note 21) 222.14 218.77

. Details of interest rate for each type of borrowings
. The interest an above vehicle loans fram ICICI Bank Limited are fixed in nature. As of March 31, 2024, the interest rate is 8.10 % per annum (March 31, 2023: 8.10 % per annum).

. On March 28, 2019, the Company issued non-cumulative redeemable preference shares 1,562,500 of face value ¥ 10 each fully paid up to LT Foods Limited (the Holding

Company') at a premium of 118 per share carrying a coupon rate of 10%, for an aggregate sum of ¥ 2,000.00 redeemable at the expiry of 8 years. During the previous year, with -
effect from Aprit 1, 2019 the Company and the holding company have revised the agreement to extend the tenure from 8 years to 19 years. Given this is a significant
modification in the tenure and conditions, the Company has evaluated the accounting treatment and considered this as extinguishment of prior agreement and entering into a
fresh agreement. These preference shares are redeemable on the completion of 19 years from the date of issuance. Such instrument is considered as compound financial
instrument as per Ind AS 32 ‘Financial Instruments : Presentation’ and Ind A5 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ with a component of debt and equity. Above amount represents debt
component of the instrument. The equity component of the instrument amounting to ¥ 524.03 is reflected in Note 16(A), being excess of transaction value ¥ 2,000.00 and
present value of future cash flows in accordance with the contractual terms and conditions considering the nature of instrument as unsecured. The Company has used 14% per
annum as discount rate for calculating the present value of contractual cash flows.

(This space has been intentionally left blank) \




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities.

The change in Company's liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Particulars Long term borrowings Short term Lease Liability Total
borrowings*
Net debt as at April 1, 2023 1,540.09 19,378.24 374.51 21,292.84
Cash movement:
- Repayment of long term borrowings (20.34) . - (20.34)
- Praceeds / Repayment (4,518.87) - (4,518.87)
- Payment towards lease liabilities - - (90.00) (90.00)
- Interest paid 211.21 (2,345.18) - (2,133.97)
Dividend paid {200.00) - - (200.00) .

Non Cash movement:

- Interest expenses - 2,345.18 27.79 2,372.97
- Impact of reinstatement - 2.05 2.05
Net debt as at March 31, 2024 1,530.96 14,861.42 312.30 16,704.68
* Including current maturities of long term borrowings.

Particulars Long term borrowings Short term Lease Liability Total

borrowings* ’

Net debt as at April 1, 2022 1,549.03 21,347.20 - 22,896.23
Cash movement:

- Repayment of long term borrowings (18.77) - - (18.77)
- Proceeds / Repayment - (1,833.26) - (1,833.26)
- Payment towards lease liabilities - - (22.50) (22.50)
- Interest paid {4.90) (1,731.58) - (1,736.48)
- Dividend paid (200.00) - (200.00)
Non Cash movement:

- Interest expenses 214.73 1,731.58 4.94 1,951.25
- Recognition of (ease liabilities - - 392.07 392.07
- Impact of reinstatement - (135.70) - (135.70)
Net debt as at March 31, 2023 1,540.09 19,378.24 374.51 I21,29i.8_4.

* Including current maturities of long term borrowings.
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

18 Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities (refer note 2)

i) The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

Particulars

Current lease liabilities

Non-current lease liabilities

Total

The following is the movement in lease liabilities:
Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Additions

Add: Finance cost accrued during the year

Less: Payment of lease liabilities
Balance at the end of the year

it} The following are amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Particulars

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities

i) Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31, 2024 was ¥ 90.00 ( March 31, 2023 : % 22,50).
19 Long-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 41)
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absence

20 Other non-current liabilities

Deferred government grant (Refer note 47)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

244.86 312.30
244.86 312.30
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
67.44 62.21
244.86 312.30
312,30 374.51
As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
374.51 -
- 392.07
27.79 4.94
(90.00) (22.50)
312.30 374.51
As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
80.61 19.82
27.79 4.94
As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

86.65 18.83
53.01 38.21
139.66 57.04
As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
3.29 11.63
3.29 11.63
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ takhs unless otherwise stated)

Short-term borrowings

Secured
From banks
Rupee working capital loans
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note 17}
Packing credit foreign currency loans

Particulars

a) Rupee working capital loans

The rupee working capital loans are secured by 1st pari passu charge with other banks in consortium on reciprocal
basis on the entire current assets (present & future) of the Company and 2Znd pari passu charge with other banks in
consortium on the fixed assets (present & future) of the Company. These are further secured by personal guarantees
of directors and corporate guarantee of the holding company.

The rupee working capital loans are repayable on demand and interest on'the above loans from banks in consortium
are linked to the respective bank base rates/ MCLR which are floating in nature. The interest rate ranges from 7.40%
to 9.20% per annum (March 31, 2023: 6.10% to 8.65% per annum) on rupee working capital loans.

b) Packing credit foreign currency loans

The packing credit foreign currency loans are secured by 1st pari passu charge with other banks in consortium on
reciprocal basis on the entire current assets (present & future) of the Company and 2nd pari passu charge with other
banks in consortium on the fixed assets (present & future) of the Company. These are further secured by personal
guarantees of directors and corporate guarantee of the holding company.

The interest rate ranges from SOFR + 85 Basis Points to SOFR + 90 Basis Points (March 31, 2023: SOFR + 125 Basis
Points to SOFR + 200 Basis Points).

The details of financial and non financiat assets pledged as security for current borrowings disclosed in Note 40.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities (Refer note 18)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

11,568.31 15,060.06
22214 218.77
3,074.34 4,099.41
14,864.79 19,378.24
As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

11,568.31 15,060.06
3,074.34 4,099.41
14,642.65 19,159.47
As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
67.44 62.21
67.44 62.21
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AlL amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

23 Trade payables

1ii)

<

=

24

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalt enterprises
- total outstanding dues 1o other than micro enterprises and small enterprises”

* Includes payable to related parties (Refer note 45}

Mature Bio Foods Limited
Super Taxfab Private Limited
S.K. Trading Company

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

823.28 759.93
§5,852.04 52,118.64
T 5667532 52,878.57
- 50.52
674.87 932.82
8,340.86

Due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 to the extent

infarmation available with the management is given below:-

Particulars

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier
at the end of each accounting year:

- Principal amount remaining unpaid

- Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end

Amount of interest paid by the Company to the suppliers in terms of section 16 of the Act.
Amount paid to the suppliers beyond the respective due date.

As at
March 31, 2024

823.28
9.09

199.04

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in payments {which have been paid but beyand the due

date during the year} but without adding the interest specified under the Act.
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year.

0.64
9.73

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small ehterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure

under section 23 of this Act.

As at March 31, 2024
Particulars

1) MSME

12} Disputed dues - MSME
13) Others

(4) Disputed dues - Others

As at March 31, 2023
Particulars

1) MSME

12} Disputed dues - MSME
13) Others

i4) Disputed dues - Qthers

Other financial liabilities
Derivate liabilities

Security deposit
Other liabilities

12.26

Unbilled Dues

As at
March 31, 2023

759.93
1.31

253.21
1.22
2.53

2.53

Payables Not Due

Outstanding for following periuds from due date of Payment

Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years -3 years More than 3 years °

B0Z.64 20.64 B23.28

55,661.43 146.90 17.92 | 0.18 25.61 55,852.04

56,464.07 167.54 17.92 6.18 25.61 56,675.32

Unbilled Dues  Payables Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment
Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

732.45 27.48 - - - 759.93

50,583.61 1,508.28 1.52 7.10 18.13 52,118.64

S 513160 1,535.76 152 740 1813 52,878.57

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
5.62 -
11.57 11.57
1,184.14 1,141.91
1,201.33 1,153.48
(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in X lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Other current liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advances from customers* 9,710.70 3,086.09
Statutory liabilities 136.94 132.43
Other liabilities 2.20 -
Deferred government grant (Refer note 47) 2.06 3.94
9,851.90 3,222.46
includes advance received from related parties (Refer note 45)
LT Foods Limited 1,749.14 -
LT Foods America Inc. (Refer Footnote) 7,678.34 3,056.84
Nature Bio Foods Limited 55.97 -
Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited 8.21 -
LT Foods Europe B.V. 205.93 -

Footnote:

In the prior years, the Company had obtained business advance, amounting to ¥ 7,446.73, from its foreign customer which is fellow subsidiary of the
Company (the “Customer”} for supply of its products in few identified years commencing from FY 2019-20. During the year ended March 31, 2020, the
Company and the Customer have mutually agreed and modified the terms and conditions of supply of such products. The Company has duly communicated
the same to authorized dealer bank. Basis revised terms and conditions, the Company has accrued interest costs amounting to ¥ 92.53 during the year
(March 31, 2023: ¥ 197.05), applying rate of interest applicable in similar and comparable market transaction i.e. @ SOFR + 75 Basis Points (March 31, 2023:
@ SOFR + 75 Basis Points). Further, on account of performance obligation satisfied on supplies made during the current year, the Company has reversed out
interest accrued against advance from LT Foods Americas Inc. amounting to ¥ 577.97 (March 31, 2023 : ¥ 147.97). As at April 01, 2023, the Company had an
cutstanding balance of USD 4.48 Million (INR 3,056.84 lakhs) which has been entirely adjusted in the current period against the sales to the customer.

Short- term provisions As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 41)

Provision for gratuity o 99.82
Provision for compensated absences 35.86 21.33
35.86 121.15

As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Current tax liabilities

Provison for tax [net of advance tax] o 146.41 293.04

146.41 293.04

(This space has been intentionaily {eft blank)



28 Revenue from operations

29

30 Cost of material consumed

DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED )
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Sale of products *

Export
Domestic

Sale of traded goods *

Export
Domestic

Other operating revenue
Processing charges
Export Incentive
Government grant income (Refer note 47)

* Details of products sold

Sale of products

Rice

By praducts
Paddy
Bardana
Others

Sale of traded goods

Rice
Total

Other income

Rental income
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Interest on bank fixed deposits and others

Income from fleet lease

Miscellaneous income

The Company has entere
lease. Rental income for operating lease for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 was % 18.15 an
Company has not executed any non-cancellable operating leases.

Opening stock
Raw Material
Bardana
Packing material

Add: purchases
Raw Material
Bardana
Rice
Packing material
Other

l.ess: closing stock
Raw Material
Bardana
Packing material

Total

(This space is intentionally left blank)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

67,366.60- 63,178.42

84,184.68 63,699.60

487.81 261.49

350.61 591.65

1,528.08 1,349.22

625.29 636.73

517.16 521.39

1,55,060.23 1,30,238.50
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

1,45,276.93 1,18,116.78

5,412.03 5,191.87

214.18 21.88

17.14 865.37

631.00 2,682.12

838.42° 853.14

1,52,389.70 1,27,731.16
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

18.15 18.15
25.22 .
47.61 27.39
86.30 45.47
29.44 3.81

206.72 94.82

Year ended
March 31, 2024

d into rent agreements as‘a lessor for area of premises owned by the Company, which are in the nature of operating
d ¥ 18.15 respectively. The

Year ended
March 31, 2023

21,674.43 14,415.75
836.97 1,662.93
671.14 799.04

23,182.54 16,877.72
89,852.51 70,398.81
1,176.05 257.39
32,548.05 29,252.83
5,728.08 5,557.57
276.15 1,685.86

1,29,580.84

1,07,152.46

14,812.90 21,674.43
1,874.54 836.97
758.42 - 671.14
17,445.86 23,182.54
1,35,317.52 1,00,847.64
./—_‘--‘\\.
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Consumption details

Raw Material 96,714.04
Bardana 138.48
Rice 32,548.05
Packing material 5,640.80.
QOther 276.15

63,140.13
1,083.35
29,252.83
5,685.47
1,685.86

1,35,317.52

1,00,847.64

Purchases of stock-in-trade Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Rice 791.41 775.71
791.41 775.71
Changes in inventories of finished goods, semi finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in trade Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Opening Stock
Semi-finished goods 15,532.00 17,420.39
Finished goods 8,621.44 2,072.72
Work-in-progress 279.58 194.97
Closing stock
Semi-finished goods 33,647.73 15,532.00
Finished goods 5,007.90 8,621.44
Work-in-progress 257.12 279.58
(Increase)/Decrease (14,479.73) (4,744.94)
Detail of work in progress, semi finished goods, finished goods and stock in trade
Employee benefit expense Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 2,352.87 2,086.25
Contribution to provident and other fund * 92.14 86.60
Gratuity expense 41.70 47.42
Staff welfare expenses 219.69 177.49
2,706.40 2,397.76
* For descriptive notes on disclosure of defined benefit obligation, refer note 41 - Employee benefit obligations.
Finance cost Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Interest on :-
Working capital loans 1,633.34 1,280.57
Term loans 3.33 4.90
Lease Liability 27.79 4.94
Delay in payment of statutory liabilities 8.29. 26.56
1,672.75 1,316.97
Other borrowing costs™ 728.01 831.33
2,400.76 2,148.30

*This amount includes interest amounting to T 211.21 provided on preference shares during the year (March 31, 2023 - X 209.83).
Note: The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable

to the Company's general borrowings during the year, in this case 8.21% (March 31, 2023: 6.60%). Also, refer note 9.

(This space is intentionally left blank)



DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ in {akhs unless otherwise stated)

35 Depreciation and amortization expenses

fear ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,816.57 1,502.23
Depreciation of right of use assets 80.61 19.82
Amortization of intangible assets 4.20 4.44
1,901.38 1,526.49
36 Other expenses Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rent (refer footnote A} 215.11 255.73
Wages and other manufacturing expenses 444.15 370.66
Power and fuel 1,488.22 1,302.40
Security services 190.13 169.05
Packing expenses : 395.93 352.91

Repairs & Maintenance Charges :
- Plant and machinery 141.74 176.89
- Buiiding 92.64 56.58
- Others 44.88 54.33
Stores and spares consumed 1,263.49 1,129.41
Insurance expenses 213.56. 17117
Legal and professional charges 470.00 402.76
Rates and taxes 188.83 171.49
Donation and charty 123.16 2.47
Corporate social responsibility expense (refer footnote B) 164.00 148.12
Directors' sitting fees . 10.20 11.40
Auditors' remuneration (refer footnote C) 12.50 27.00
Vehicle running and maintenance 26.85 25.85
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment {net) = 36.81
Travelling and conveyance ] 130.94 119.21
Commission to selling agents 61.17 28.11
Clearing, forwarding and freight charges 5,671.20 12,406.73
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translations 750.34 77.55
Sales promotion expenses 1.33 0.62
Business promotion expenses ' 12.39 19.13
Other administrative expenses 296.04 - 224.02

i 12,408.80 17,740,40
Footnote:

A. The Company has entered into rent agreements as a lessee for warehouses and office premises, which are in the nature of short-term leases.
These leases has been accounted for applying Paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116 - Leases and accordingly recorded as an expense amounting to ¥ 215,11
and ¥ 255.73 for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively.

B. Corporate social respobnsibility {'CSR’) expenses

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i Gross Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 162.56 146.95
Amount spent during the year on
(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 154.00 148.12
Amount transferred to unspent CSR Account* 10.00 L.

Shortfall at the end of the year . -

* The amount transferred to Unspent CSR Account represents CSR expense relating to ongoing projects as at March 31, 2024. The same has been
transferred to Unspent CSR Account by the company within 30 days from the end of financial year.

C. Auditors’ remuneration (exclusive of applicable goods and service tax) Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Statutory audit (including fees for limited reviews) 12.50. 12.50
¢ O o O\ - 14.50
12,50 27.00
-
4’- ~
40 -0,-
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Alt amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Tax expense Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
The income tax expenses consists of the following :
Current tax expenses for the current year 3,551.71 2,542.72
Current tax expenses pertaining to prior years (54.04) 1.04
3,497.67 2,543.76
Deferred tax expenses
Deferred tax credit for the current year 139.40 (14.08)
139.40 (14.08)
Total tax expense 3,637.07 2,529.68

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of 25.168% and the
reported tax expense in statement of profit or loss are as follows:
Year ended March Year ended March

31, 2024 31, 2023
Profit before income taxes 14,220.41 9,641.96
At country’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2023: 25.168%) 3,578.99 2,426.69
Adjustments in respect of current income tax
Expenses disallowable under the Income tax act 122.66 89.93
Tax pretaining to prior years (54.04) 1.04
Others (10.54) 12.02
Total tax expense 3,637.07 2,529.68
Earnings per share
Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders (1,89,05,291 Equity Shares @ Rs. 10 each) 10,445.19 7,019.44
Numbers of weighted average equity share outstanding at the year end for Basic & Diluted . 1,89,05,291.00 1,89,05,291.00
Nominal value per share 10.00 10.00
Earnings per ordinary equity share
Basic & Diluted 55.25 37.13
Profit attributable to non voting equity shareholders (2,50,050 Equity Shares @ Rs. 10 each) 138.15 92.84
Numbers of weighted average equity share outstanding at the year end for Basic & Dituted 2,50,050.00 2,50,050.00
Nominal value per share 10.00 10.00
Earnings per non voting equity share
Basic & Diluted 55.25 37.13
Note: There are no potential equity shares in the Company.
(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

39 Col

ntingencies and other commitments; As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(A) Contingent liabilities

Fo

Income-tax demands (refer footnote) 827.60 822.65
| Corporate guarantees given by Company (refer note 46) - 2,626.89
| Duty saved under EPCG Licenses [export obligation outstanding ¥ 1,588.36

(March 31, 2023: ¥ 1,304.68)] Ll 217.45

Total 1,092.33 3,666.99
otnote:

a. The Company had an appeal for assessment year 2009-10 amounting to X 59.57 (March 31, 2023: ¥ 59.57), against ‘which the Appellate
Authority has passed an order in favour of the Company. However, the appeal effect is yet to be processed by the Ld. Assessing Officer.

b. The Company during the financial year 2021-22, has received demands under section 143(3) of the Income Tax Act for the assessment years
2017-18 and 2018-19 amounting to £ 682.82 and % 80.26 respectively, (March 31, 2023: X 682.82 and ¥ 80.26) against which appeals before
the Commissioner of Income Tax {CIT) (Appeals) have been filed. The outcome of such appeals is pending.

c. The Company during the financial year 2023-24 has received a demand order of ¥ 208.35 for assessment year 2020-21 under section 143(3)
which is subject to potential rectification under section 154 of the Income Tax Act. Post such rectification, the Company anticipates that the
demand shall be T 4.86 (March 31, 2023: NIL). Currently, the Company has filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax (CIT)
(Appeals). The outcome of such appeal is pending.

d. The Company during the financial year 2023-24, has received demand under section 143(3) of the Income Tax Act for the assessment year

2021-22 amounting to T 0.09 (March 31, 2023: NIL) against which an appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax (CIT) (Appeals) has been
filed. The outcome of such appeal is pending.

The management is confident that its position is likely to be upheld in the appeals pending and no liability could arise on the Company on
account of these proceedings.

(B) Capital commitments

Capital commitments remaining to be executed and not provided for, (net of capital advances) ¥ 600.97 (March 31, 2023: 1,221.23).

40 Assets pledged as security

Th

e carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current barrowings are:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non-current assets

First charge

Property, plant and equipments 16,518.64 11,766.82
Capital work-in-progress 588.90 828.48
Other financial assets 191.59 138.75
Total non-current assets pledged as security 17,299.13 12,734.05

Current assets
First charge

Inventories ’ 1,01,554.74 86,332.11
Trade receivables 3,722.11 7,719.72
Cash and cash equivalents 328.89 712.58
Other bank balances - 51.47
Other financial assets 468.29 210.00
Other current assets 2,732.59 1,693.10
Total current assets pledged as security 1,08,806.62. 96,718.98
Total assets pledged as security 1,26,105.75 1,09,453.03

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

41 Employee benefit obligations

| Defined benefit ptans

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Gratuity - 86.65 99.82 18.83
Compensated absences 35.86 53.01 21.33 38.21
Total . 35.86 139.66 121.15 57.04
A Gratuity

The Campany provides gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The planned assets are managed by Canara HSBC OBC Life Insurance & PNB MetLife India
insurance Company Limited. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the
employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. For the funded plan, the Company makes
contributions to recognized funds in India. The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on
estimations of expected gratuity payments.

Disclosure of gratuity
The amounts recognized in the Balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

{i) Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is as under:

Description March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Current service cost 35.39 32.73
Interest cost (Net) 6.31 14.69
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and {oss* 41.70 47.4i

*Included in Employee benefits expense (Refer note 33).

{ii) Breakup of actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive income (OCl)

Description March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Actuariat (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic assumption - 0.78
Actuarial gain on arising from change in financial assumption 5.85 (2.54)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on arising from experience adjustment . 41.96 63.84
Remeasurement on plan assets | (21.50) 3.76
Total actuarial loss/(gain) recognised in OCI 26,31 _65.84_

{ili) Movement in the liability recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Description March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the start of the year 387.29 290.84
Current service cost 35.39 32.73
Interest cost 25.92 20.83
Actuarial loss recognised during the year 47.81 62.08
Benefits paid (49.76) (19.19)
Present value of definéd benefit obligation as at the end of the year 446.65 387.29

(iv) Change in fair value of assets:

Description March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 268.65 85.46
Interest income on plan assets 19.61 6.14
Contribution to fund 100.00 200.00
Actuariat (Loss)/ Gains 21.50 (3.76)
Benefits paid (49.76) (19.19)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 360.00 268.65

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless atherwise stated)

(v) Actuarial assumptions

Description March 31, 2024

Discount rate 7.09%

Retirement age 58 years

Employee turnover 8.00%

Rate of increase in compensation 8.00%

Mortality rate (IALM} 2012-2014
Ultimate

March 31, 2023
7.30%
58 years
8.00%
8.00%

(IALM) 2012-2014

Ultimate

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the

employment market.

(vi) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

Description March 31, 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 446.65
- Impact due to increase in discount rate by 100 basis points (26.51)
- Impact due to decrease in discount rate by 100 basis points 30.19
Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 446.65
- Impact due to increase in salary escalation rate by 100 basis points 26.40
- Impact due to decrease in salary escalation rate by 100 basis points (25.50)

March 31, 2023

387.29
(22.92)
26.16

387.29
23.16
(22.36)

The ahove sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit
obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied which was applied while catculating the defined benefit obligation liability

recognised in the balance sheet.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to prior period.

(vil) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation for 10 years (undiscounted)

Description . March 31, 2024
Within next 12 months 118.01
Between 2-5 years 140.21
Between 6-10 years 158.43

(viii) The net liability of defined benefit obligation is as under:

March 31, 2023
103.40
114.00
138.55

Description March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation 446.65 387.29
Fair value of plan assets {(360.00) (268.65)
Net defined benfit obligation 86.65 118.64

B Compensated absences

The earned leave liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death-in-service of an employee. The actuary has used projected unit cost (PUC) actuarial method to assess the

plan’s liabilities of employees.

Actuarial assumptions

Description March 31, 2024
Discount rate 7.09%
Withdrawal rate 8.00%
Future. basic salary increase 8.00%
Notes:

1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligations.
2 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis.

il Defined Contribution Plans
Provident Fund and ES| Fund

Contribution made towards pravident fund by the Company during the year is T 86.10 (previous year X 79.22).
Contribution made towards ESI fund by the Company during the year is X 6.04 (previous year ¥ 7.38).

(This space has been intentionally left blank) —
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Fair value disclosures
Financial instruments by category
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
~FVTRL TFVOO Amortized cost FYTPL Fvoct Amortized cast
Financial assets
Investment * 119.67 - - 74.25 -
Trade receivables - - 3,722.11 - 7,719.72
Cash and cash equivalents - - 328.89 - . 712.58
Other bank balances - - - . 51.47
Other financial assets - - 14,431.77 5.47 . 13,993.61
Total 119.67 - 18,482.77 79.72 - 2247738
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 16,392.38 - 20,918.33
Trade payables - . 56,675.32 . - 52,878.57
Lease Liability - . 312.30° . . 374.51
Other financial liabilities 5.62 - 1,195.71 - - 1,153.48
Total 5.62 5 74,575.71 - -; 75,324.89
* Investment in equity instrument of subsidiary has been accounted at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27, therefare not within scope of Ind AS 109, hence, not included here.
Fair values hierarchy
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the balance sheet are categorised into three levels of fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs
to the measurement, as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives} is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements
As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Total
.Investment = = 119.67 967
Total financial assets == - 119.67 119.67
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities 2 - 5.62 5.62
Tatal financial liabilities . = - 5.62 5.62
As at March 31, 2023
Financial assets
investment - 74.25 74.25
Derivative assets = 5.47 5.47 °
Total financial assets 3 79.72 79.72
Ihee are no financial liabilities as at March 31, 2023 Which have been measured at fair value -
Valuation process and technigue used to determine fair value
(a) Key man insurance policy {Investment) fair value is based on surrender value stated by SBI Life Insurance Company Limited, which represents surrender value for the investors.
(b) Derivative financial assets/liabilities; The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally financial institutions with investment grade credit ratings. Foreign exchange
forward contracts are valued using valuation technigues, which employs the use of market observable inputs, The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing models, using present value
catculations. The models incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and farward rates etc.
Fair value of instruments measured at amortized cost
Fair value of instruments measured at amartized cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows: .
The management assessed that security deposits, other financial assets, cash and cash equivalent, other bank balance, trade receivables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to
the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Non-current borrowing comprises liability portion on tiability component of compound financial instruments.
T'he fair values of loans, security deposits, borrowings and other financiat assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their carrying values, as there is an immateriat change in the lending rates.
Particulars Level As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Carrying vaiue Fair value Carrying value _Fair value
Financial assets
Trade receivables Levet 3 3,722.11 3,722.11 7,719.72 7,719.72
Cash and cash equivalents Level 3 328.89 328.89 712.58 712.58
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent Level 3 . - - 51.47 51.47
Qther financial assets Level 3 14,431.77 14,431.77 13,993.61 13,993.61
Total financial assets 18,482.77 18,482.77 22,477.38 22,477.38
Financial liabilities
Borrowings Level 3 16,392.38 16,392.38 20,918.33 20,918.33
Lease liabitities Level 3 312.30 312.30 374.51 374.51
Trade payables Level 3 56,675.32 56,675.32 52,878.57 52,878.57
Other financial liabilities Level 3 1,201.33 1,201.33 1,153.48 1,153.48
Total financial liabilities 74,581.33 74,581.33 75,324.89 75,324.89

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in % in lakhs unless otherwise stated}

Financial risk management
Risk management framework

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the
financial statements.

i Risk i N Exposure arising from | Measurement Management a
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Ageing anatysis Bank deposits, diversification of asset
receivables, financial assets Credit Rating Analysis base, credit limits and collateral.
measured at amortised cost
|Liquidity risk |Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lineg
and borrowing facilities
Market risk - foreign exchange Recognised financial assets and Cash flow forecasting and Sensitivity [Farward contract and hedging,
liabilities not denominated in indian | Analysis including PCFC loans as hedge
rupee (INR) linstruments.
|Market risk - interest rate short-term borrowings at variable Sensitivity analysis Negotiation of terms that reflect the
| |rates market factors
Market risk - security price Investments in equity securities Sensitivity analysis Company presently does not make any
investments in equity shares, except
for entities where it exercises control
or significant infiuence.
_ b == | - ___

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (of the Group) under policies approved by the Board of directors. The Board of directors provides written principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks, financial institutions and other parties as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding receivables.

a) Credit risk management

The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system, continuously monitoring defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified either individually or by the Company, and
incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Internat credit rating is performed for each class of financial instruments with different characteristics. The Company assigns the following credit ratings to
each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class af financial assets.

A Low

B: Medium

C: High

- X | . As at March 31, As at March 31,
Credit rating Particulars 2024 | 2023

A:'Ev o ICash and cash equlva'lents 328.89 712,58
Other bank balances - 51.47
Other financial assets 14,431.77 13,993.61
|'\'rade receivables - P 3,722.11 7,719.72

B: Medium B [TEdejceivaﬂes - 4544 |

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks.

Trade receivables -
The Company closely monitors the credit-worthiness of the debtors through internal systems that are configured to define credit limits of customers, thereby, limiting the credit risk to pre-calculated amounts. The
Company assesses increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis for amounts receivable that become past due and default is considered to have occurred when amounts receivable become past due one year.

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost
Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes advances to employees, security deposits and others. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such
amounts continuously, while at the same time internal control system in place ensure the amounts are within defined limits. .

(This space has been intentionally teft blank)




B

DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(ALl amounts are in  lakhs unless otherwise stated)

b) Expected credit losses

Expected credit losses for financial assets other than trade receivables

The Company provides for expected credit losses on financial assets other than trade receivables by assessing individual financial instruments for expectation of any credit losses. Since, the Company deals with only
high-rated banks and financial institutions, credit risk in respect of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and bank deposits is evaluated as very low. In respect of other financial assets, credit risk is evaluated
based on Company’s knowledge of the credit worthiness of those parties and loss allowance is measured as lifetime expected credit losses. The Company does not have any expected loss based impairment recognised

on such assets considering their low credit risk nature, though incurred loss provisions are disclosed under each sub-category of such financial assets.

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Gross carrying Expected Carrying amount  Gross carrying Expected Carrying amount
amount probability of  net of impairment amount probability of  net of impairment
default provision default provision
Cagsh and cash equivalents 328.89 0.00% 328.89 712.58 0.00% 712.58
Other bank balances 0.00% 51.47 0.00% 51.47
Other financial assets 14,431.77 0.00% 14,431.77 13,999.08 0.00% 13,999.08

Cxpected cradit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

The Company recognises tifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables using a
business segment based on the criteria defined above and such provision percentage
criteria are met). Trade receivables are subject to credit limits, controls and approvals processes. The majority of receivables are from related
Further based on the histarical experience, the risk of default in case of trade receivables is low.

Particuiars 0-1 Year More than 1 Year
As at March 31, 2024

Trade receivables 3,650.27 117.28
Default rate 0.00% 38.75%
Expected credit loss {45.44)
As at March 31, 2023
Trade receivabtes 7,646.47 118.68
Default rate 0.00% 38.29%
Expected credit loss . (45.44)
Reconciliation of loss allowance Amount

Loss allowance on April 01, 2022 (68.16)
{Add)/Less: Changes in loss allowances 22.72
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 {45.44)
{Add)/Less: Changes in loss allowances i -
Loss allowance on March 31, 2024 (45.44)

Liquidity risk

simplified approach, wherein Company has defined percentage of provision by analysing historical trend of default relevant to each
determined have been considered to recognise life time expected credit losses on trade receivables (other than thase where default
parties where the Company has greater visibility of creditworthiness.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the avaitability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit tacilities to meet obligations when due.

Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed facilities.

Mmanagement monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the

entity operates.

Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the foltowing undrawn ‘fund based’ borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

- Expiring within one year [cash credit and other facilities) 14,857.35 10,340.53

- Expiring beyond one year (term loans) - -
The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice. 14,857.35 10,340.53
Maturities of financial liabilities .

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity of Company based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying values as the impact of discounting is not significant.

March 31, 2024 Less th;n 1 year 1-3 year More than 3 years Totat
Borrowings (excluding intefest thereon) 14,864.79 7.76 1,519.83 16,39_7.,33_
Lease liabilities * 67.44 244.86 - 312.30
Trade payables 56,675.32 - 56,675.32
Other financial liabitities R 1,195.71 . 1,195.71
Total 72,803.26 252.62 1,519.83 74,575.71
March 31, 2023 Less than 1 year 1-3year  More than 3 years Total
Borrowings (excluding interest thereon) 19,378.24 31.46 1,508.63 20,918.33_
Lease liabilities * 62.21 237.28 75.02 374.5%
Trade payables 52,878.57 - - 52,878.57
Other financial liabilities o 1,153.48 - 1,153.48
Total 73,472.50 268.74 1,583.65 75,324.89
* Carrying amount has been disclosed as the impact of discounting is not significant

(This space has been intentionaily left btank} —




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Notes to the financiat statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ in lakhs unless otherwise stated}

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
whjective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

a) Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to the US Dollar & Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and Uabilities denominated 1n a currency that is not the Company's functionat currency. The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows. The objective of the
hetges is to minimise the volatility of the INR cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions.

The Company's policy is to hedge all material foreign exchange risk associated with highly probable forecast sales transactions denominated in foreign currencies. The Company's policy is to hedge the risk of changes in
foreign currency. The Company uses combination of pre-shipment credit in foreign currency (PCFC) and forward contracts {derivative instruments) to hedge its exposure in foreign currency risk. The Company designate
both change in spot and forward element of forward contracts and change in spot of PCFCs to hedge exposure in foreign currency risk on highly probable forecast sales.

} Exposure to currency risk:

The Company's exposure to forewgn currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed are as follows:

Particulars
Financial assets:
Trade receivables
FURO
usb

Foreign exchange forward contracts (Sell fureign currency)

FURO - USD
usp

-Financial liabilities
Trade payables
usb

Preshipment credit
usb

Net exposure;
fURO
Uso

Particulars
!-'.'—URO :
iusn
lsuicorusn

In foreign currency

In INR

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

|Cash flow hedge
Foreign currency risk

(1) Foreign exchange forward contracts

- 3.1 2,608.56
10.82 L2175 901.94 1.788.15
- (9.50) - (851.28)
{20.00) (35.00) (1,667.481 (2,877.59)
2.98 6.04 248.27 496.71
36.87 49.86 3,074.34 4.099.41
- 19.61 ~ 1,757.28
(49.03) (69.15) (4,088.15; (5,685.56)
The following significant exchange rates have been applied for measurement of balances denominated in foreign currency:
Year end spot rate
i March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
| 90.22 89.61
83.37 82.27
) B | ;.08 1.09
(a) Disctosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial position {Hedge Accounting)
G Carryi ¢ of hedgi = = T [ '
. arrying amount of hedging i Change n the value of
Nominal value instrument Average strike | CP2rge infair | hedged item used as
| Maturity dates Hedge ratio price value of hedging the basis for
| Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities instrument recognising hedge
| effectivenass.
| |
|
|
1,669.90 5.62 |28 June 2024 - 11 USD: Rs.83,50 (5.62} 5.62
30 Sept 2024
3,073.02 3,074.34 16 July 2024 - 14 USD: Rs.83.34 (1.32) 1.32

(i1} Pre-shipment credit in foreign

currency (PCFCs)

As at March 31, 2023

Cash flow hedge
Farefgn currency risk

currency {PCFCs)

Type of hedge and risks

(1) Foreign exchange forward contracts

iii} Pre-shipment credit in foreign

Nominal value

Carrying amount of hedging

instrument

Assets

Liabilities

3,755.09

4,076.64

Assets Liabilities

5.47

4,099.41

23 Sept 2024

Maturity dates

Hedge ratio

Average strike

29 Aprit 2022 -
28 February 2023

05 June 2022 -
24 September 2022

pnce

11 USD: Rs.83.17
EURD: Rs.85.93

1 UsSD: Rs.81.76

Change in fair
value of hedging
instrument

5.47

(22.77)

Change in the value of
hedged item used ss
the basis for
recognising hedge
effectiveness

(5.47)|

22.77

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in T in takhs uniess otherwise stated)

{b) Disclosure of effects of cash flow hedge on financial performance

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Change in the value of hedging
instrument in other comprehensive
income

Type of hedge and risks

Hedge ineffectiveness recognised in| Amount reclassified from cash flow | Line item affected in statement of |

profit/(loss) hedging reserve to profit/(loss) |

profit and loss because of
reclassification and hedge

|Cash flow hedge
|Foreign currency risk

| (i) Foreign exchange forward contracts (11.09)
({i) Pre-shipment credit in foreign
currency (PCFCs) 21.45

8.34

| (33.38)

Revenue and other income

Revenue and other income

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Change in the value of hédging
instrument in other comprehensive
income

| Type of hedge and risks

Hedge ineffectiveness recognised -ir_\] Amount reclassified from cash flow
profit/(loss} hedging reserve to profit/(loss)

Line item affected in statement of
profit and loss because of
reclassification and hedge

Cash flow hedge
|Foreign currency risk

| (i) Foreign exchange forward comracts' {138.34)
(ii) Pre-shipment credit in foreign
currency (PCFCs) 135.7¢

- (69.73)

. (1,033.04)

Revenue and other income

Ravenue and other income

I'he Company's hedging policy only allows for effective hedge relationships to be established. Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periadic prospective
effectiveness assessment to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument.
For forward contracts, hedge effectiveness is measured using the dollar offset method. The time adjusted, market to market of the hedge item is calculated by using the hypothetical derivative method. The ratio of

the market to market of hedge items against the time adjusted, market to

For PCFC, the foreign
ratio. The ineffective component, if any, is charged to Profit & Loss account.

(c) Movements in cash flow hedging reserve

Particulars

As at April 01, 2022

Add: Changes in fair value of forward contracts
Add: Changes in fair value of PCFCs

Less: Amount reclassified to profit or loss

Less: Tax relating to above (net}

Change during the year ended March 31, 2023
As at March 31, 2023

Add: Changes in fair value of forward contracts
Add: Changes in fair value of PCFCs

Less: Amount reclassified to profit or loss

Less: Tax relating to abave (net)

Change during the year ended March 31, 2024
As at March 31, 2024

»
»
< 1215

Amount
{10.96)
(208.07)
(897.34}
1,102.77
0.66
(1.98)
T (12.94)
(2.75)
(11.93)
25.04
{2.61)
7.75
(5.19)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

market of hedge instruments is used to measure Hedge effectiveness. The ineffective component, if any, is charged to Profit & Loss account.

currency loan is treated as a hedge instrument and the same is compared to the spot mavement in the forecast sales and the dollar offset method is applied for calculating the hedge effectiveness



DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements far the year ended March 31, 2024
(ALl amounts are in T in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Sensitivity

A reasonably possible strengthening / weakening of the Euro, US dollar, GBP against
currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes tl

all ather currencies at March 31, 2024 would have affected the measurement of financiat instruments denominated in a foreign
hat all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impatt of forecast sales and

purchases.
Particulars |Currency Streng_the-n | Strengthen - Weaken | Weaken

Effect on profit after tax | Effect on other components of Effect on profit after tax Effect on other components of equity

Gain/(Loss) equity Gain/(Loss) Gain/{Lass} | Gain/(Loss}

| Mmarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023] March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023 |
Sensitivity of change in exchange rate by |EURO - | 19.52 (6.37) (19.52) . 6.37 |
100 basis points* |
|Sensitivity of change \n exchange rate by |USD 4.89 9.66 (35.54) {52.21) (4.89) (9.66) 35.54 52.21
100 basis points |
Sensitivity of change in exchange rate by (GBP - - - - -
{100 basis points - = _B

- lri-ori-d;\-g—all other variables constant

b} Interest rate risk
1} Liabilities

1he Company’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on tong-term financing. As af

interest rates. The Company's investments in fixed deposits pay interest at fixed interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:

t March 31, 2024, the Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates through bank borrowings at variable

IP;niEulars - - [ march 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

|Variable rate borrowing | 14,642.65 19,159.47
|Fixed rate borrowing B | 1,749.73 1,758.86
[Total borrowings* [ 16,392.38 20,918.33

Sensitivity

prafit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from barrowings as a

flow hedges related to borrowings.

result of changes in interest rates. Other components of equity change as a result of an increase/decrease in the fair value of the cash

Particulars
Variable rate borrowing
- impact due to increase of 50 basis points*

- Impact due to decrease of 50 basis points™

L Effect on profit after tax
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

(54.79}
54.79

(71.69)
71.69

ii} Assets

Ihe Company's fixed deposits are carried at amortized cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject

cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

¢} Price risk Exposure

The Company does not have any significant investments in equity instruments which create an exposure ta price risk.

44 Capital management

a) The Company’s capital management objectives are
- to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
to provide an adequate return to sharehalders

to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future

I'he Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amaunt of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet.

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the

Campany’s various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital struct
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amo

I'he Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio as at the year end was as follows.

ure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
unt of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

[Particulars o

Total borrowings including tease liabilities
|Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Tatal equity

[ March 31, 2024 |_March 31, 2023

Adju_sted net debt to adjusted equity ratio

[ 16,704.68 | 21,292.84
(323.89) (712.58)
16,375.79 20,580.26 |
56,184.04 45,612.64
0.29 ©0.45

b) Loan covenants

Under the terms of major borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply with the following covenants:

- Adjusted Tangible Net Worth of ¥ 48000.00 to be maintained.

The Company has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period.-

(This space has been intentionatly teft blank)




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in X lakhs unless otherwise stated)

45 Related party disclosures .
The Company’s related party transactions and outstanding balances are with its holding Company, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, associates, key management and others
as described below. :

A. Relationships

a) Holding Company
LT Foods Limited

b) Subsidiaries

LT Agri Services Private Limited (till 24.01.2024)

¢} Fellow subsidiaries (with whom transactions have taken place during the current or previous year}

Nature Bio Foods Limited

LT Foods Americas inc. (Formerly known as Kusha, inc.)

Ecopure Specialities Limited

Deva Singh Sham Singh Exports Pvt.Ltd.
LT Foods Europe B.Y.

LT Foods Middle East DMCC

Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited

d) Joint venture of holding company

Kameda LT Foods (India) Private Limited (Formerly known as Daawat Kameda (India) Private Limited)

e) Associates of holding company
Raghuvesh Agri Foads Private Limited
Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited
Raghuvesh Infrastructure Private Limited

B. Key management personnel and Directors

-Key Management Personnel
Name

Ashwani Kumar Arora
Vijay Kumar Arora
Ashok Kumar Arora
Surinder Kumar Arora
Parmod Kumar

Neeru Singh

Sachin Gupta

Parmod Bhagat
Surender Kumar Tuteja
Rajinder Wadhawan
Anu Pushkarna

Designation

Director and Chief Executive Officer
Director

Managing Director

Managing Director

Whole time directer

Non Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 26.10.2023})
Director (till 24.01.2024)

Director

Chief Financial Officer (till 25.10.2023)
Company Secretary

Entities in which Key Management Personnel and their relatives have significant influence (with whom transactions has taken place during the current year

and/or previous year)
S.K. Trading Company (till 25.10.2023)
Super Texfab Private Limited
QOswal Woollen Mills I._imited

Details of transactions and balances with the above related parties in the ordinary course of business

Transactions with the holding company

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Income from fleet lease 42.18 37.79
Corporate guarantee availed charges 279.92 216.52
Business support services 248.37 247.23
Insurance expense 54.08 44,51
Testing and inspection charges 88.44 61.34
Purchases 1,584.29 26,997.64
Purchase of Stock in trade 441.40 187.66
Reimbursement of expenses - 107.18
Payment of dividend 200.00 200.00
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 11.42 8.83
Sales 59,843.74 40,903.73
Corporate guarantee availed 14,642.65 16,659.60

.77 /;\
p\ K Wi s
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in ¥ in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Balance at the year end {net receivable/ (net payable)} (1,749.14) 1,795.41
Transactions with subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries and associate companies.
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Sales

LT Foods America Inc. 56,576.37 44,321.10

LT Foods Middle East DMCC 33.47 94.59

Kameda LT Foods (India) Private Limited (Formerly known as Daawat Kameda {India} Private Limited) - 2.65

Deva Singh Sham Singh Exports Pvt.Ltd. 735.60 735.80

LT Foods Europe B.V. 5,127.96 13,586.74

Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited 11,558.1% 10,347.49
Purchases

Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited 18.78 231.10
Rental income

Nature Bio Foods Limited 18.15 18.15
Processing charges income

Nature Bio Foods Limited 2.07 0.19
Power and fuel expenses

Nature Bio Foods Limited 168.53 . 152,70

Ecopure Specialities Limited 3.07 -
Income from fleet lease

Ecopure Speciatities Limited - 0.09
Reimbursement of Expenses

Nature Bio Foads Limited 1.15 2.91
Particulars Year ended Year ended

Balance at the year end {net receivable/ (net payable)}

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited (8.21) 892.67
LT Foods America inc. - advance from customer (7,678.34) (3,056.84)
LT Foods America Inc. - debtor - 1,003.82
Nature Bio Foods Limited {55.97) (50.52)
Deva Singh Sham Singh Exports Pvt Limited 83.73 123.48
Kameda LT Foods (India) Private Limited (Formerly known as Daawat Kameda {India) Private Limited.) 39.69 39.69
Lf Foods Europe B.V. (205.93) 2,240.96
Ecopure Specialities Limited - 0.98
Transactions with entities over which KMP’s and/or their relatives have significant influence or control
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sales .
Oswal Woollen Mills Limited 352.90 573.09
Purchases
S.K. Trading Company 45,27 -
Super Taxfab Private Limited 2,888.41 2,814.95
Balance at the year end {net receivable/ (net payable)}
S.K. Trading Company* - (8,340.86)
Super Taxfab Private Limited (674.87) (932.82)
Oswal Woollen Mills Limited 20.07 27.34

*Represents amount payable against procurement under agency relationship with Daawat Foods Limited, Refer note 9(a} for further details.
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Transactions with key management personnel

Particulars

Remuneration paid

Year.ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Rajinder Wadhawan 57.87 99.21
Parmod Kumar 41.21 41.21
Ashok Kumar Arora 230.00 223.25
Surinder Kumar Arora 230.00 223.25
Sitting fees
Parmod Bhagat 3.40 4.10
Surender Kumar Tuteja 3.60 4.50
Neeru Singh 3.20 2.80

Mr. Vijay Kumar Arora, Mr. Ashwani Kumar Arora and Mr. Ashok Kumar Arora, the Directors have given personal guarantees against the working capital loans availed by

the Company.

Mr. Vijay Kumar Arora, Mr. Ashwani Kumar Arora and Mr. Ashok Kumar Arora, the Directors have given personal guarantees against the term loans availed by the

Company.

Defined benefit obligation for KMP

Gratuity

Rajinder Wadhawan 9.23 8.65
Compensated absences

Rajinder Wadhawan 1.67 1.00

The transactions with related parties have been

market at that time.

46 Details of loan, investment made and guarantees given covered under section 186(4) of Companies Act, 2013

(i) Name of the Investee

As at
March 31, 2024

entered ihto by company in the ordinary course of business, on arm's length basis on terms prevailing in the open

As at
March 31, 2023

Investments in equity shares
Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited 84.15 84.15
Total 84.15 84.15

The investments are made for business purposes only.

(ii) Guarantees outstanding, given on behalf of Name of Bank As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Purpose "ol i amount Outstanding Sanction Outstanding
amount amount amount

T(aran Trading Corporation® Axis Bank Working capital

loan - » .1,500.00 1,499.70
Kartik Enterprises* Axis Bank Working capital

loan - 1,500.00 1,127.19
Total = - 3,000.00 2,626.89

“The above guarantee were made for business purposes only.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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47 Deferred government grants

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At the beginning of the year 15.57 25.05
Released during the year (517.16) (521.39)
Rereived during the year 506.94 511.91
At the end of the year 5.35 15.57
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023.
Current Non-current Current Non-current

Government grants B 2.06 3.29 3.94 11.63

48 Segment reporting

ii

i

B

The Company's operations predominantly relate to the business of milling, processing of branded and non-branded basmati rice and manufacturing of rice food
products in the domestic and overseas market. The Company has identified its whole-time directors as chief operating decision makers (CODM) who assess the
financial performance and take the strategic decisions for the Company. The chief operating decision makers review the operations of the Company as one
operating segment. Hence, no separate segment information has been furnished herewith.

An analysis of the Company's revenue from sale of rice and other products is as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Amount % Amount %

Rice 1,46,115.35 94,23% 1,18,969.92 91.35%

Others 6,274.35 - 4.05% 8,761.24 6.73%

Other operating revenue 2,670.53 1.71% 2,507.34 1.92%

Total 1,55,060.23 100.00% 1,30,238.50 100.00%

. The Company categorizes its revenue based on products sold and further by geographical region, as summarized below, which as per management is most
appropriate:

. Sale of Rice . As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Amount % Amount %
India 78,266.12 53.56% 56,608.23 47.58%
United States of America 56,589.98 38.73% 42,276.58 35.54%
Other countries 11,259.25 7.71% 20,085.11 16.88%
Total 1,46,115.35 100.00% 1,18,969.92 100.00%
. Sale of Other ltems As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Amount % Amount %
India 6,269.17 99.92% - 7,636.75 87.17%
United States of America - - 980.32 11.19%
Other countries 5.18 0.08% 144.17 1.64%
Total 6,274.35 100.00% 8,761.24 100.00%
. Dther operating revenue As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Amount % Amount %
India 2,670.53 100.00% 2,507.34 100.00%

. There are no non-current assets located in foreign countries other than domicile country.

. The Company has significant customers, the extent of reliance including details of revenue from customers where sales are greater than 10% of the entity’s
revenue:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Amount % Amount . %
LT Foods Limited 59,843.74 38.59% 40,903.73 31.41%
LT Foods America Inc. (Formerly known as Kusha Inc.) 56,576.37 36.49% 44,321.10 34.03%
LT Foods Europe B.V. - - 13,586.74 10.43%
...\ 1‘ 9
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49 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Indian Accounting Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers {“ind AS 115”), establishes a framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised
and requires disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from customer contracts. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised

through a 5-step approach:

(i) Identify the contract(s) with customer;

(ii} Identify separate performance obligations in the contract;
(iii) Determine the transaction price;

(iv} Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and

(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities

There has been no significant changes in contract assets/contract liabilities during the year.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
Advance from Customers;
Description

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
Performance obligations satisfied in current year

Amount received in the current year having outstanding performance obligations

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the end of the year

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

3,086.09 4,778.71
(3,086.09) (4,778.71)
9,710.70 3,086.09

~ 9,710.70 3,086.09

Remaining performance obligations as at the reporting date are expected to be recognised over the next year by the Company.

Disaggregation of revenue

The Company has performed a disaggregated analysis of revenues considering the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues. This includes disclosure of revenues by

segment and type.

Revenue by segment

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Revenue from contract with custemer
Revenue from sale of products
Domestic

Export

Processing fees

84,535.29 64,291.25
67,854.41 63,439.91
1,528.08 1,349.22

The Company has applied the practical expedient and has not disclosed the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligaﬁions as the Company does not have any

open contract for which the expected duration is more than one year as at the reporting period.

Revenue by time

Revenue recognised over time
Revenue recognised at point in time

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

Description

Contract assets related to sale of goods and services
Advance from customers

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

Description
Contract price
Adjustment for:

Rebate & discounts
Revenue from Operations

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

1,528.08 1,349.22
1,52,389.70 1,27,731.16
1,53,917.78 1,29,080.38
As at March 31, 2024 - As at March 31, 2023
Non-current Current Non-current Current
- 9,710.70 - . 3,086.09

March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

1,54,304.84 1,29,126.26
(387.06) (45.88)
1,53,917.78 1,29,080.38




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amaounts are in % in fakhs unless otherwise stated)

50

Disclosure of Ratios

Particulars

Ratic

|' ]
S No. Ratio Farmula Numerator Denaminator March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 Variation®
(a) |Current Ratio Current Assets / Current | Current Assets= Inventories + Trade Current Liability= Short term 1.31 1.25 4.7%
Liabilities Receivable + Cash & Cash Equivalents |borrowings + Trade Payables + Other
+ Other Current Assets + Bank Balance |financial Liability+ Current tax
[ + Loans + Other Financial Assets Liabilities + Lease Liabilities+
Provisions + Other Current Liability
(b) |Debt-Equity Ratio Debt / Equity Debt= {ong term borrowing + short |Equity= Equity Share Capital + 29.73% 46.68% -36.3%
term borrowing + Non-current and Reserve and Surplus
current lease liabilities
{c)} |Debt Service Coverage Ratio Net Operating Income / Debt|Net Operating Income= Net profit Debt Service = Interest and Lease 7.38 6.08 | 21.3%
| Service before taxes + Non-cash operating payments + Principal Repayments of
expenses + finance cost lease liabilities and long term
borrowing
|
(d) |Return on Equity Ratio Profit after tax less pref. |Net Income= Net Profit after taxes Shareholder's Equity= Equity Share 0.19 .16 20.8%
Dividend x 100 / Capital + Reserve and Surplus
Shareholder's Equity
(e) |Inventory Turnover Ratio | Cost of Goods Sold / Average [Cost of Goods Sold = Cost of material |Average Inventory= (Opening 1.29 1.57 -17.8%
tnventory consumed + Purchases of Stock in Inventory + Closing Inventory)/2
Trade + Changes in Inventory
() |Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio| Net Credit Sales / Average |Net credit sales = Sale of product + Average Trade Receivables= 26.64 9.47 181.2%
Trade Receivables Sale of traded goods (Opening Trade Receivables + Closing
Trade Receivable)/2
(g} |Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Net Credit Purchases / Net Credit Purchases Average Trade Payables= (Opening 2.40 3.18 -24.4%
Average Trade Payables Trade Payables + Closing Trade
Payables)/2
i (h) |Net Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue / Average Working |Revenue from Operations Average Working Capital= Average 6.80 7.06 -3.6%
Capital of Current assets - Current liabilities
_(i) Net Profit Ratio _ Net Profit / Net Sales Net Profit Revenue from Operations 0.07 0.05 25.1%
(j) Return on Capital Employed EBIT / Capital Employed |EBIT= Earnings before interest and Capital Employed= Equity Share 0.23 0.18 | 29.4%
taxes Capital + Other Equity + Non Current
and Current borrowings + Tatal Lease
Liabilities
k) |Return on Investment Net Profit / Net Investment |Net Profit Net Investment= Equity Share Capital 5.53 kAl ‘ 48.8%
L ]
*Explanation for change in the ratios by more than 25%:-
() Debt-Equity Ratio
The debt equity ratio is favourable in current year on accaunt of repayment of borrowings.
{Ih  Trade Receivables Turnaver Ratio
The trade receivable turnover ratio is favorable in current year on account of decrease in trade receivable in currrent year.
() Net Profit Ratio
The net profit ratio has improved due to increased profitablity in current year.
(IV) Return on Capital Employed
The return on capital employed has improved due to increased profitablity in current year.
(V) Return on Investment
The return on investment has improved due to increased profitablity in current year.
(This space has been intentionally feft blank)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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As per the international transfer pricing norms introduced in India with effect from April 01, 2001, the Company is required to use certain specified methods in
computing arm’s length price of international transactions between the Company and its associated enterprises and maintain prescribed information and documents
relating to such transactions. The appropriate method to be adopted will depend on the nature of transactions/ class of transactions, class of associated persons,
functions performed and other factors, which have been prescribed. The Company is in the process of conducting a transfer pricing study for the current financial year.
However, in the opinion of the Management the same would not have a material impact on these financial statements. Accordingly, these financial statements do not
include any adjustments for the transfer pricing implications, if any.

The Supreme court of India in the month of February 2019 had passed a judgement relating to definition of wages under the Provident Fund Act,1952. There are
numerous interpretation issues relating to the judgement passed by Supreme Court dated February 28, 2019 in the matter of Surya Roshni Ltd and others v/s State of
M.P. on Provident fund. The order does not specifically mention the date of applicability of this judgement, whether it'will be retrospectively or prospectively. Pending
issuance of guidelines by the regulatory authorities on the application of this ruling, the impact on the Company for the previous periods, if any, can be ascertained.
However, the Company has adopted the above changes prospectively.

The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee benefits, during the employment and post-employment, has received residential assent on
September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on
November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial impact are also not
yet issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes
effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following Ind
AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2023. The Company has applied these amendments for the first-time in these financial
statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 1 - disclosure of accounting policies: The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding
guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the financial
statements,

Amendments to Ind AS 8 - definition of accounting estimates: The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments had no impact on these financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 12 - deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction: The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.
This amendment does not have any material impact on the financial statements.

New and amended standards issued but not effective
MCA notifies new standards.or amendments to existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year
ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the company.

The Company has a working capital limit of ¥ 29,500.00 Lakhs. For said facility, the management files returns/ statements, including information about inventory, -
debtors and creditors (with their ageing), with such banks on monthly basis. The management also files revised returns/ statements, including similar information as at
quarter-end and for the quarter then ended, with such banks on quarterly basis after reconciling the data with quarter-end accounts. The revised returns/ statements
filed with such banks, except for few immaterial differences, are in agreement with the unaudited books of accounts of the Company on aggregate basis.

Other Statutory Information:

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(i) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual Currency during the financial year.

{ifi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies}), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall: a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or, b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iv) The Company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding {whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) ar, b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(v) The Company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(vi} The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution {as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in
accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

(vii) The title deeds of all the immovable properties namely leasehold and freehold land are held in the name of the Company.

{viii} The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

(ix) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)
Rules, 2017.

(x) The Company does not have any transactions with company struck-off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

{xi) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(xii) The borrowings obtained by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such borrawings were taken.
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57 Previous year figures
Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary, to confirm to current year's classification.
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